Council

AGENDA

SUPPORTING PEOPLE IN KENT COMMISSIONING BODY

Thursday, 20th March, 2008, at 2.00 pm Ask for: Geoff Mills/Andy
Ballard

Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Telephone (01622) 694289/69497

Maidstone

1. Apologies

2. Introductions

w

Minutes of meeting - 20 December 2007 and matters arising

Reports
Performance Management - (Melanie Anthony)

Response to the Audit Commission Inspection Report - (Claire Martin)
Budget and Growth - (Claire Martin)
Local Area Agreement 2 - (Melanie Anthony)

Draft Specification for Community Alarm Services - (Kevin Prior)

© ® N o o =

Mental Health Growth Bid - (Kevin Prior)

10. Better Homes, Active Lives PFI- (Caroline Highwood)
11. Self-Directed Support - (Kevin Prior)

12. Glossary

13. Any other business

Contact: Geoff Mills, Secretary, Room 1.95 Sessions House, County Hall,
Maidstone ME14 1XQ
Tel (01622) 694289 e-mail: geoff.mills@kent.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Item No: 5
REPORT
By: Caroline Highwood - Director Resources, Kent Adult Social
Services
To: Supporting People in Kent Commissioning Body
20 March 2008
Subject: Performance Management
Classification: Unrestricted
For Decision
Summary: This report provides data on all aspects of Performance
Management in the Kent Supporting People

Programme.

1.0 Introduction

The Supporting People Team monitors both the performance of schemes within
the programme in Kent and the performance within the Team itself. The data
source for much of this report is the workbook returns made by providers.

2.0 Programme Monitoring
2.1 Public Service Agreement 2 (PSA2)

The Supporting People Programme contributes to Target 9 of the PSA2 to help
Kent’s most vulnerable adults, aged 18 to 64, to live independently.

The target is to increase the number of vulnerable adults, aged 18 to 64, living
independent and fulfilled lives in the community by increasing the number of
Supporting People service users who have successfully completed a planned move
from a short-term service into independence or been helped by a period of floating
support which has now been completed.

-1-
CB 20.03.08 Performance Management



Table 1 provides quarterly performance information for this target. The 3-year
target of 5588 move-ons was reached within Quarter 2 of 2007/08. The total of
planned move-ons achieved by the end of the period of the agreement stands at
7020, this exceeds the original LAA target and was achieved 6 months ahead of
the target date. With the support of its partners, the programme has performed
exceptionally well in PSA2 by improving its own processes, promoting close
partnership working and tackling barriers to improvement. The involvement of
the programme in Local Area Agreement 2 is discussed in a further paper tabled
on this agenda.

Table 1: Number of planned move-ons from services per quarter

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 | Actual % of

Target Jﬁn - Apr - Jun | Jul - Sep | Oct - Dec | Total Annual
ar Target

Achieved
Year 1 (2005) 497 511 520 525 2053 115%
Year 2 (2006) 529 533 694 670 2426 130%
Year 3 (2007) 586 556 615 784 2541 90%
Total for 3 Yr period 7020 126%

[Source — SP Workbook Retﬁms] |
2.2 Quarterly Workbook Returns

Table 2 shows an analysis of workbook returns from quarters 14 to 19. The
Commissioning Body will note a slight fall in the number of workbooks returned
by the initial deadline. For the first time this quarter, reminders have not been
sent to providers who have failed to return their workbooks by the deadline, and a
rise in the number of defaults issued is noted. Two providers sent in separate

workbooks despite their services having been merged.

Table 2: Workbook return monitoring
Qtr15 | Qtr16 | Qtr 17 | Qtr 18 | Qtr 19
Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar | Apr-Jun | Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec
06 07 07 07 07
Number of workbooks expected * 444 430 388 386 376
Number of workbooks returned 377 352 279 335 317
by deadline (85%) (82%) (72%) (87%) (84%)
Number of reminders sent 78 60 107 S50 0
Number of workbooks received 426 412 380 378 378
by end of default period (96%) (96%) (98%) (98%) (100.5%)
No. Defaults issued 10 17 8 8 34

*The reducing number of workbooks expected each quarter reflects the merging of services.

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

-0

Page 2




2.3 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

The CLG set two Key Performance Indicators for Supporting People programmes.
The indicators are calculated from quarterly returns made by the Supporting
People Team to the CLG. The source data for these returns is derived from the
detailed information submitted by providers in their quarterly workbooks. The
CLG publish the performance of all programmes nationally against these
indicators on the SPKweb www.spkweb.org.uk

The CLG indicators are as follows

~KPI 1 - Service users who are supported to establish and maintain independent
living

KPI 2 - Service users who have moved on in a planned way from temporary living

arrangements

Detailed information on how the KPIs are calculated is contained in Table 2.1 of
Appendix 2.

The performance of the Kent programme over that last 4 quarters for which the
CLG has published data is outlined in Table 2.2 of Appendix 2.

At its meeting in February, the Core Strategy Development Group recommended a
target for the programme of 98% for KPI1 in the coming year 2008/09.
Performance against this target will be reported in each quarterly Performance
Management report presented to the Programme’s governing bodies.

The suggested target for KPI2 is discussed in a paper tabled later on this agenda.

2.4 Floating Support Referral Data

The system for floating support referrals across Kent services is managed centrally
within the Supporting People Team for all but three services for older people.

Appendix 3 shows several analyses of floating support referrals across the last five
quarters organised by district and arranged according to indices of deprivation.
Three tables are provided which examine the number of referrals received during
each quarter (Table 3.1), the number allocated to a provider during each quarter
(Table 3.2) and finally a snapshot analysis by district/borough of the number of
people on the waiting list at the end of the quarter (Table 3.4). In response to
requests from the Core Strategy Development Group, two further tables are
provided. The tables display an analysis of the source of all referrals received in
quarter 19 (Table 3.3) and a further snapshot analysis of the number of people on

-3-
CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 3



the waiting list arranged by primary client group (Table 3.5). In its February
meeting the Core Strategy Development Group requested that an analysis of the
three services for older people in Swale, Tonbridge and Malling and Maidstone are
included in future reports. It was further requested that information on tenure
for floating support referrals is outlined in future reports.

The tables show a fall in the numbers of referrals being received when compared
to the unprecedented numbers last quarter (Table 3.1). Similarly, the number of
those being allocated this quarter has fallen (Table 3.2) whilst the number of those
waiting has risen.

The relationship between the high proportion of referrals from the Health sector in
Ashford (Table 3.3) and the large number of people with mental health problems
on the waiting list in that borough is worthy of further investigation. The
proportion of self referrals is being received is highest in Gravesham and also
merits further investigation in order that this success may be replicated elsewhere
in the county.

The Commissioning Body should be aware that Table 3.5 highlights only the
Primary Client Group of any individual referral and that this is only indicative of
the needs of those on the waiting list. For example the table shows just one
person whose housing related support needs arise from their status as a refugee.
However, the table cannot show that two of those on the waiting list have
identified themselves as having secondary client group as refugee but they are
counted by their primary needs - that of homelessness and domestic violence,
respectively.

The bar chart in Appendix 2 gives a snapshot analysis of the length of wait for
those in most need by district/borough taken at the end of quarter 19. The figures
show that 9 people in highest need had been waiting for more than 9 months. The
majority (51%) of all of those waiting had done so for less than 2 months, with
43% waiting between 2 and 6 months and fewer (6%) over 6 months.

A number of individuals with lower level of need and Banded a B and C, remain
on the waiting list without a service. For many, the wait has been in excess of a
year and predates the transfer of the management of the referrals waiting list to
the Supporting People Team. The Team periodically contacts these individuals to
establish that they still require a service. With the proportion of grade A referrals
so high, it is unlikely that these individually will receive a service in the coming
quarter. A paper tabled later in this agenda discusses a proposal for improving
this situation. A revision of the referrals document will also give clarity to
referring agents as to what criteria of need meets the Level A banding.

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 4



2.5 Contractual data

At the time of reporting, contracts are held with 126 providers who deliver 429
services. Of these 76% are accommodation based services and 24% are floating

support services.

Further information on contracts, providers and services are included within

Appendix 1.

3.0 Complaints

The SP Team collect and log details of all complaints received and a nominated

Manager within the Team has responsibility for the management of complaints.

Table 4 provides a summary of the nature and status of complaints received since

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 5

January 2007.
Table 4: Complaints received January 2007 to date
Quarter 19 2007 to date
Oct - Dec 07 :
/7]
2 g 8§ o i - ?
. w 8 8.9 0 o 8,98 2
Nature of Complaint ° g 88D % s 83 g
st |8%%| § |ff 8%y | ¢
S | | ¢ | & |5 E| &
= é o Z -~ &
Withdrawal of Support 2 0 2 4 0 4
Quality of support received 2 0 2 8 0 8
Withdrawal of funding 0 0 0 3 0 3
Lack of consultation 0 0 0 3 0 3
Incorrect payment 0 0 0 1 0 1
"| Incorrect referral 1 0 1 2 0 2
Review Process 1 0 1 2 0 2
Other 0 0 0 2 1 1
-5-




4.0 Recommendation

The Commissioning Body is asked to
(i) note the contents of the report.
(ii)  agree the target for KPI1 at 98% for the forthcomlng year

Melanie Anthony
Performance and Review Manager
01622 694937

With contributions from Kevin Prior, Contracts and Finance Manager

Appendix 1 Contractual data as at end of Quarter 19
Appendix 2 Performance against key performance indicators
Appendix 3 Comparative floating support referral data Quarter 19

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 6



Appendix 1

Contractual data as at end of Quarter 19 (end of Quarter 16, 31st March
2007, provided by means of comparison)

TABLE 1.1: CONTRACTUAL DATA as at Close of Quarter 19

Quarter 16 Quarter 19

Jan — Mar 07 Oct —~ Dec 07

Number of Providers 158 126
Number of Services 481 424
Number of Household Units 23149 22047

TABLE 1.2: BREAKDOWN OF UNITS

Number of Floating Support Units 9058 4323
Number of HIA Units 1619 1619
Number of Sheltered Units 10416 13444
Number of Other Acc. Based Units 2112 2737

TABLE 1.3: CONTRACTS

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Number of Block Gross Units 4453 9539

Number of Block Subsidy Units 18411 12584

Of which Capped 12453 13106

Not Capped 5958 9017

TABLE 1.4: CONTRACT VALUES at 7 January 07*

Grant from CLG £31,947,395 £32,024,915
‘Contract £ £29,199,030 | £29,177,973.27

% FS 26% 24%

% Accommodation Based 74% 76%

* financial data for 2007/08

-7 -

Page 7



APPENDIX 2
Performance against key performance indicators (KPIs)

TABLE 2.1 CALCULATION OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
KPI1

This KPI calculates the number of service users who A have established or are
maintaining independent living (existing service users and those who have departed) as a
percentage of the total number of service users during in the period.

Final KPI 1 calculation = x
—|*100

KPI2

This indicator measures the number of service users who have moved on in a planned
way as a percentage of service users who have left the service.

% 1*100
Y
where:

x = the number who have moved on in a planned way to independent living;
y = the total number of service users who have moved on.

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 8



TABLE 2.2 LOCAL PERFORMANCE AGAINST KPIs

The table below gives the performance of the Kent programme against Key Performance
Indicators 1 and 2 for the last four quarters published by CLG
Appendix 2 cont’d

KPI1
Kent T 06.8% 98.6%  99% | 97.9%
Regional 97 7% 98.4% 98.8% 98.2%
National 98.3% 98.4% 98.7% 98%
Source: CLG

KPI2

Kent 66.7% 65.3% 471% 78.2%
Regional 64.5% 66.1% 66.3% 62.1%
National 64.8% 64.1% 63.3% 71.3%
Source: CLG

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 9



Appendix 3
Comparative floating support referral data October 2006 — December 2007

TABLE 3.1: NUMBER OF FLOATING SUPPORT REFERRALS RECEIVED

This table shows floating support referrals received according to
district/borough from October 2006 to December 2007

85 Thanet 74 57 55 93 72
130 Swale 54 45 62 81 51
131 Shepway - 65 67 65 - 92 64
154 Dover 60 57 51 61 75
158 Gravesham 28 26 38 49 39
170 Dartford 18 9 17 23 28
190 Canterbury 48 40 26 54 47
233 Ashford 52 29 37 75 54
283 T'Wells 52 42 31 57 58
270 Maidstone 40 38 73 60 75
303 Sevenoaks 28 23 33 38 49
304 TMBC 80 53 50 55 30

TOTAL 599 486 538 738 642

TABLE 3.2: NUMBER OF FLOATING SUPPORT REFERRALS ALLOCATED

This table shows the number of floating support referrals allocated to a
provider by district/borough from October 2006 to December 2007

85 Thanet 26 39 64 61 57
130 Swale 26 42 31 64 37
131 Shepway 33 35 49 89 51
154 Dover 17 31 13 51 33
158 Gravesham 13 23 8 52 18
170 Dartford 12 5 11 27 19
190 Canterbury 19 31 12 57 24
233 Ashford 17 23 18 49 28
283 T'Wells 25 25 29 58 22
270 Maidstone 12 27 21 80 36
303 Sevenoaks 4 16 50 56 32
304 TMBC 17 34 115 50 36
TOTAL 221 331 422 694 393
- 10 -

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 10



jusurefeus)y S0UBULIONS] 80'€0°0Z €D

- H._” -

(%00T) (%€) (%601) | (%€g9) (%€) (%€) (%81)

oe I € 61 1 - 1 S OgILL +0€
(%00T1) (%S1) | (%¢g9) (%2) (%8) (%21)

6t . L 1€ 1 b 9 syeouanas | ' £0€
(%00T) (%€) (2%9) (%t) | (29%) (%8%) (%€) (%) (%2)

sz z b € ge 12 z € g suolsprem | O0LZ
(%00T1) (%2) (%) | (%8¢€) (%tb) (%) (%)

8S 1 % T 9z P ! STIoM.L €82
(%00T)| (%72) (%01) (%) (%2) (%9) (%ST) | (%9%) (249) (%2) (%6)

S 1 9 1 1 S 8 St € 1 g pIoyysy £eT
(6001)| (%2) (%6) (%e1) | (%2) (%2) (%92) (%) (%%0) (%2) (%€)

Ly 1 b 9 1 1 A4 z € 1 91 |Amqioquep| 061
(2600T1) (%) (611) | (%11) (%5¢€) (%) (%t) (%87)

8T 4 € € 01 1 ! 8 pIroypyreq 0LI
(%00T) (249) (%t2) | (%€) (%692). | (%ST1) (%5) (%22)

6€ z 6 I 01 9 4 6 weysaaBIy| 8ST
(%00T)| (%b) 60z ) | (%E1) | (%) (%%€) (%12) | (%21) (%¢) (%L1)

S € ST 01 g 4 91 6 4 €1 Iaa0(Q ST
(%001)| (%T1) (%¢) (%61) | (©01) | (%) (%1) (%0€) | (%1T1) (%1) (%L1)

+9 I 2 z1 9 b 1 61 L T 1T Lemdoyg I€T
(%00T1) (%+2) (%69) | (%ze) (%9) (%+1) | (%0T1) (%) (%b1)

1S €1 € 11 € L S 4 L arems 0€I
(%00T1) (%92) (%€) | (%01) | (%6C (%11) (%2) (%2) (%)

L 61 4 L 12 8 S g g joury] S8

V Al L
ys a1qe} Sy,

=4 AR

61 I93Xend I0J PIAISIJI S[elldjdr jroaans SUI}eO]] 920IN0S 3Y) SMO

Qﬂb&mOﬁM&%ﬁﬂﬁm&EﬁzmHkR?#ﬂﬂw02Hﬁ<0ﬂh~ﬁUmﬂHﬁDOwHMAwﬂAm¢H

Page 11



TABLE 3.4: NUMBER OF PEOPLE ON WAITING LIST BY DISTRICT/BOROUGH

This table shows the number of floating support referrals waiting to receive a floating
support service at the end of quarter 19. Those individuals (86) who are currently in
supported housing or otherwise not ready to receive their floating support service are not
included

85 Thanet 44 81 64 70 87
130 Swale 28 12 31 39 51
131 Shepway 30 54 49 43 56
154 Dover 39 39 13 19 65
158 Gravesham 13 6 8 5 23
170 Dartford 6 5 11 6 17
190 Canterbury 28 11 12 S 25
233 Ashford 33 24 18 48 70
283 T'Wells 26 46 29 22 57
270 Maidstone 23 38 21 19 35
303 Sevenoaks 22 45 50 5 46
304 TMBC 58 125 115 60 56

TOTAL 350 486 422 346 588
- 12 -

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 12



lm.—”l

Juswafe Uy 9OUBULIONS] R0°'C0°0Z €D -

a9

9P

S€

LS

0L

ST

LI

€T

59

98

s

[e30],

%08

%ST

%ST

uaarsd JoN.

%EE

%EEC

%E€

a1e) Sugararf o_mcom Sunogx

%S

%S

%0C

%St

%S

%S

Asry e ajdoag Sunox

%9

%L1

%9

%L1

%E

%E

%6

%9

%I

jusxed a[qerauiny

%S

%t [

%CC

%S

%8

%L1

%S

%t L

asnsI| 9oue)Isqng

%8 [

Y

%C

%S T

%81

%8

%9

%t

%t

%t

%E' L

%t

ssarauwroy adurs

%001

293njoy

%4 [

%L

%E L

%<

%C

%t L

%t [

%S

Aynqesia

Lxosuag /1eorsdyqg

%01

%91

%9

%E

%€

%0 L

%01

spoap 3roddng

ynm ardoad 19p1o

%L

%8

%0 1L

%91

%t

%L1

%t [

%t [

01

€T

0%

14!

L1

HIE9H [ejua|l

%CI

%81

%6

%S

%8 .

%1

%11

01

Anqqesiq Supurear

%S [

%G

%C

%ST

%G

%&

%0C

%t

spaau

(4}

jroddns yjim ssqurey

%&C

SIOpUIO-XF

2ouafoIA d13sewoq

spoaN xordwo)

POPNOUL JOU ST 20TIAIIS

110ddns Suneoyy II91} 9AI909I 0} ApEal Jou ISIMIdTIo Jo Sursnoy payroddns ul A[JUSLIND aJe oym (9g) STenNPIAIPUL 9SOy, ‘61
191renb Jo pus 9] e 9014198 1roddns Surieo] B 910091 0] unrem syerrsjar roddns Surjeoy Jo JoquInu oY) SMoys 9[qe]} SIy],

dNOWD ILNAITO AAVINIRId A4 LSIT DONLLIVAM THL NO HTdOHd JO JUINNN -S°€ dTdV.L

Page 13



Appendix 3 cont’d
Source Data for Bar chart: Length of wait for Band A floating support by district
at close of Quarter 19

Thanet - 10 17 14 13 3 4 61
Swale - 7 8 3 8 - - 26
Shepway - S 10 11 S - - 31
Dover - 8 16 11 4 2 1 42
Gravesham - 3 6 4 2 - - 15
Dartford - - - 4 4 1 - 9

Canterbury - ) 7 2 1 - - 15
Ashford - 3 17 9 15 3 - 47
Maidstone - 7 7 2 - - - 16
TWBC - 7 15 4 7 1 2 36
Sevenoaks - 4 3 S 4 - - 16
TMBC - 2 5 7 8 2 2 26

Grand - 61 111 76 71 12 9 340
Total
- 14 -

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 14



Length of Wait for Band A Floating Support by District at close of

Quarter 19

Appendix 3 continued
Bar chart

Length of wait for band A floating support by

district/borough for quarter 19

-
(o]
c
©

=

|

Swale

Shepway

Dover

Gravesham

Dartford

Canterbury

Ashford

Maidstone

TWBC

Less than 1 week

Up to 1 month
[1Up to 2 months
[1Up to 3 Months

Up to 9 months

Sevenoaks

TMBC

80

60

40
Number of referrals

20

- 15 -

CB 20.03.08 Performance Management

Page 15



Item No: 6.

REPORT
By: Caroline Highwood — Director of Resources, Adult Services
To: Supporting People in Kent Commissioning Body

20 March 2008

Subject: Response to the Audit Commission Inspection Report

Classification: Unrestricted

For Decision

Summary: This report gives information regarding the response of
the administering authority to the Audit Commission
report on the inspection of the Supporting People
Programme in September 2007.

1.0 Introduction

The Kent Supporting People Programme was inspected by the Audit Commission
in September 2007. The Audit Commission’s report into its findings and
recommendations was published on its website in December 2007. As the
Administering Authority, Kent County Council was invited to return a one-and-a-
half page response to this report by 29 January 2008.

2.0 Writing the Response

In order to ensure that the response to the Audit Commission fully reflected the
views of the programme’s partners, an extraordinary meeting of the Core Strategy
Development Group was convened on 15 January 2007. Members of the
Commissioning Body were also invited to attend. The meeting was well supported
and a wealth of ideas about how the recommendations could be addressed was
discussed. These discussions formed the basis of a draft action plan upon which
the response to the Commission was based (Appendix Two)

CB 20.03.08 Audit Commission Response

Page 16



3.0 Future Work

The support of the governing bodies of the programme is sought in developing
and implementing the draft action plan and delivering the Audit Commission’s
recommendations to the people of Kent. At its meeting in February, the Core
Strategy Development Group asked that the action plan be updated with target
dates and these are reflected in the revised draft plan attached in Appendix One.

4.0 Conclusion

The Kent Supporting People Programme has responded to the Audit
Commission’s report and outlined the steps it intends to take improve the
programme still further. The Supporting People Team consider that the grading of
good with promising prospects should be seen as o success for the programme in
Kent and compares very favourably when compared with like authorities
particularly when taking into account the fact that the programme was reviewed
at the end of the audit process during which the bar has been raised as the audit
commission developed their understanding of the programme. Achieving the
action plan will require the continued support of the both the Core Strategy
Development Group and Commissioning Body.

5.0 Equality Impact Assessment

An initial screening of this decision indicates that equality impact is low.

6.0 Financial Impact Assessment

There is no anticipated financial impact of the information given in this re?ort.

7.0 Recommendation

The Commissioning Body is asked to

(i) note the contents of the response to the Audit Commission

(ii) agree to support the delivery of the action plan and therefore the Audit
Commission’s recommendations.

(iii) that the Supporting People Team report to the Commissioning Body on a
quarterly basis on the progress against the targets.

Melanie Anthony
Performance and Review Manager

Tel: 01622 694937

CB 20.03.08 Audit Commission Response

Page 17



Background Information: Audit Commission Report of the Inspection of
Supporting People Programme in Kent '

Appendix 1: Action Plan from Extraordinary Meeting of the Core Strategy
Development Group 15 January 2008

Appendix 2: Response to the Audit Commission’s report

CB 20.03.08 Audit Commission Response

Page 18



osuodsoy UOISSIWOD HPNY 80°€0°0% €0

Bunssw
4o-auo e uj Jno paddew aq ||im Jojoes

'sloupied Jayjo pue sispinold

g0 ydag [|suued op ajeAld ay} UM PBAJOAU sansst ay | soines L diysieuyied uj ABoIEns
ABeajens uo-anow apim AJUno) | uo-aaowl apim Ajunod e Buidojaaag
g0 sunp uuep ain | e jaxel pue dojeAsp 0} gnoib qns gddr
/ w = mmw P (¢ slequiawl
psajosje A|qissod) paliAul 8q [IM SUOISIOap
ayew o} Aljige sy} sAey oym a|doad Asy)
"SoUBpUS)IE WNWIXBW 8INsua 0] JUsA® S19sn 92|AI8S pue S10d
80 AON [lsuued or oy} 0} Joud sisuped pue sispjoysels mau ay Buipnjoul ‘sispjoysyels
Kay uno 03 ueAIb aq |m @oou | Aey pue sisuped ay Jo spasu pue
jo fusd — ysayel ABajenis Jear-anl4 | sanuoud ay) syospal Ainy ABejensg
By} UO p[ay aq ||IM JUSAS UOiB)NSU0D Y | JeaA-aAl4 pasinal au) Jey Buunsug
Jayjo yoeas yum yuy saibajens
80 sunp [jpuued or ueAs|al ay} |le moy uo dew ABejeng
e eonpoud [m ajdosd Buploddng ol
aq ||m sdnoub yoeai 0} piey 18yjo
paiiuspl pue JNg 4O Speau 8y} Moy moys
ale sapuabe jueAsial 8y} ||e 1eyl ainsua pue sailoud aininy Ajjuspl 0y
80 yolep ||leuued or 0} pajebisul aq 0} paau sdnoib snoo | ABeieng JesA-aAld oy Buiysaljey
‘sijeyd $821n0say Jo Jojoaliq SPIV/AIH Yim Buiag
ay} pue spusyie sjdoad buoddng yoym | sjdoad pue sasbnjal ‘sdnoib gng
80 |MdY L2 uuea 8y | dnodb sigjenel] pue AsdAo) apim Alunod ‘sig||enel ] pue AsdAo) jo spesu

ayy ybnody dJom soueyus o) Buinupuon

ol

JO SjusISSasse spasu Jayun,

:Aq a|doay
Buipoddng oy yoeoudde
olbajelys sy} usyibuang

800T Areniqad ZT HASO Surmofjoj papusmwy — 00T Arenuer GT SUI}od|
dnoin jyuowrdojosag £393e1)s 210D 9Y) Jo SuI)ody AreurpIoeI)Xy WoI} ue]d Uonoy Yyeid I xipuaddy

Page 19



asuodsoy UOISSIWWO) HPNY 80°'€0°0T €0

sladed g9 pue Hgso ainny ||e

uonoe pasodold yoes Jo awoono

J1371dNOD | Auoujuy |9y | 10 Juol) 8y Je pauesul aq |im Aiessolb v pue joedw} pajoadxa 8y} Ino
198 Ajdes)o sued |je jey; Buunsu3
80 AON SVHWLIWOD
80 ludy | uepy alen MmaInIBNQ Adlod S9OIMISS JNPY By L
0} psjussaid aq ||IMm spodal Alyjuow XIS awuwelboid sy} jo Juswdoprsp
80 . PEeo| UMOp 0} a}isgam 8y} Ul siequisw pajos)e Jo Apoq
Jaqwisydeg | Auoyuy [o 8y} Uo aq |jIIm pue siap|oy oljojiod Joapim 8yl aAjoAul 0} Buinuiuon
|e 031 Juas aq |jIm syoed uoponpul ay |
- Jespoun ujewal uojonpui
Bulob uQ | uep aliel | jey senssi Aue ybnodyy yie} o3 ejgeliere | pue souepinb aAisuayIdLIOD Yim
aq |Im wea | ajdoad Buploddng ey papinold aJe se1poq 8ouBuIaA0B
paonpoud a9 |Iim g9 pue 9aAs) 8y} Jo siaquiawl e jey) Bulnsud
go eunp | Auoyiuy [N | By} JO slagquiawl Mau 1o} syoed uononpuj
Apog bujuoissiwwon
pue dnoig) juswdojersq ABejens sepuabe Buesw
J1LT1dNOD | Auoyiuy 1B 2109 jo epuabe ay} uo jsJi Jeadde soueulanob ulyym sjgold saybiy
mou spuodal Juswisbeuew souewIONad | B juswabeuew soueuiopad Buiaig
SMaJpuy 1S 0} suinial sewodnN0
Auouyjuy |9\ ay} 919|dwiod 0} siepirodd 0} paisyo
80 Jequieos( aq ||m suoissas Bujuiedy jo swwelboud
suodeal Juswabeuew
Auoyuy souew.louad oul paj aq fjIm
g0 sunp BlUB|aI | 92IAISS J1BU} YIM S|SAS| UOIOBLSHES US| o %ﬁm%%_ww Mﬁmm_%m mmm mmmw%;w%
Jiold UiAey| | 1881 03 pasn sAaAINS pue salieuuonsany ul ewwesBosd st 0 joedu) el
‘@0IAles B Buinieoal ejdoad | einseaw 0} saipoq aoueulanob pue
10 si1aquinu MOYS O} pasu aAjje}jenyd pue slebeuew mojje yoiym siojesipul
g0 aunp uoisnjoul |e1o0s JO seale pue SjaAs| Moys | aouewliopad jo ayns e Bulysiiqelsg
. Auoyuy |9 0] papasuU ale SaInsesaw aAlejueny)

:Aq swwelboud

ay) jo aoueutanob
pue juswabeuew
aouewIopad anosdu)

t

Page 20



asuodsey UOISSIIWO) NPNY 80°€0°0C €D

. . sbuines
80 aunr | Auoyjuy [s|y papuswe aq 0} ajejdws} Hoday | Lousiole pue SIS0 0} UohuS)E
ABajens Jea )\ melp Alesio yoiym spodau
60 yodJep [lsuued or | -8Al4 8y} uiypm pajesodiooul aq jim syl | eouewlopad 1sngos Buidojenasqg
suodal Apog
Apog Buuoissiwwod | Buluolssiwwon Uil Ino 18s Ales|o
0} sjodal ||e uo wey plepuels s| swwelbolid ayy o) uonelal
J1I371dN0D | Auoyuy BN B S| JUSWISSasse Joedull [BlOUBUIY | Ul USXE) SUOISIoap ||e jo j1oeduwl
[eroueul 8y} jey; bunsug
Buiodal souewouad JO sisAjeue sAeledwos
go aunr | Auoyjuy |9\ | Hed swodaq jim Aylenb pue 3sod jsulebe InyBuluesw pue yidep-ul
siopiroid 3sbuowe Bupplewyousg | aiow ainsue pue Bupuewyouaq
Jayeboy | Jeyuny dojeasp o} sdiysieuped
auop Apealje ylom Bupjewyouaq dS J18yio yum Buppopp
80 aunp J0ld UIne)] 8y} uodn aaoudwi 0y sisuped Ajoyine

— §S0.0 S} YHM MYIOM O] 2NUIJUOI [[IM JuD)

:Aq Asuoy 1o} anjep
01 yoeolidde ay} snoidw)

Page 21



asuodsay UoISSIWWO) IIPNY 80°€0°0Z €0

sBupesw asnoy

g0 1dag | |jeuued op pue swinioy [Bo0] ‘swisjueyosl Bupsixe
asn |m wes | ajdosd Bujoddng ay | .
puey ui ysej oy} 0} sjeudoldde | juswainooid pue Juswabeuew
‘aousipne jabie) pallea pue spim e aouewiopad ‘@oueuianoh uy
g01deg | |euued or | yoeal o} sdnolb uoneynsuoo Jesn aoiales | ejedioied pue Bupjew uoisiosp
Bugsixe asn 0} wes| ajdosad buioddng | sousnjui 0 Ajunuoddo ue aaey
ay} isisse pue poddns |im siauped slasn aojA8s 1ey) Buiinsug
MOUY| 0} JUBM BM Jeym Inoge Ajuejo ainsue
Buiobup uiey pue yim paynsuod Buiaq sdnoub jusio
ale|n aAjoadsal 8y} JO Spasu ay) 0} SJUaAd
|le Jojie} jim wea ] ajdoad Buioddng ey
S9SI0J9Xd UOIB}NSU0D Sas[01axa uopneynsuod algnd
Buiobup uiep lle jo ued piepuels e sl g9 pue 9qso Jofew jle Bujuued AjInjeien
alen 1e paalibe ‘Bujuue|d uopesIuNWWOoD
slasn
g0 1des | |euued op 90IAI8S Yse 0} ysim Aay) suopsanb joexs
aney |m wes | ajdoad Bunuoddng sy
‘puey uj yse} ayj 0y aeldoidde
‘aousipne 186.e) pallea pue spim e
go1des | |euued or | yoeas 0} sdnoib uole}nsuod Jasn a2iAles S8}E20ApPE pUB SIasn
Bunsixa asn 0} wea] ajdoad buioddng YHM UOHB}NSUO0D U] S8WO0IN0
ay} 1sisse pue poddns |im siauued a|geJnseaw Jesjo sapnjoul
yolym Abajel)s JuswaA|oAu|
go1des | |euued or padojanapal aq 0} s| ABajens ay Jasn aoinlas e Buidojeasg

Aq
JUSWISA|OAUI JBSN 82IAISS

Page 22



osuodsay UOISSTWIWO) 1PNY 80°€0°0T €0

SI9]1Se09 'b'a 8)Is gam sy}
uo sjiejap A1ojoallp 82IAl8S JO Ajljige|iene

sjuiod sssooe Ay
lE 1e o|qejieAe A10joalIp SaoIAes

80 Aeyy | Auoyuy js Buijelep |eusiew Ayolgnd sonpold [eo0] a8y} Jo saidoo piey Bunjep
juswisacadull
80 abeinoous 0} ajge|ieAR SaAlUSDUI
Jaquieydag Jold uineyj sebedgem ‘syoogpuey asinay |eloueul Inoge sispirocid
0} uonjeulIojul Jeajo Buipincid
sauljaens sauljdeljs uole|suel]
3131dNOD uueA ain uoiejsued) ay} apnjoul mou sis|ies| ||y jueasjal sy} ypm pajupd
aJe sjuawnoop ||e ey} buunsug
sy ul swuwesboud sjdoaq buiuoddng
ay} jo yels Buowe abpsjmouy pue
80 aunr SI9oIQ | uoljewloful J0) SJUl0d SS8008 pue seale ul m__mEo;mwmeM%wNm
N uoljdagal UMO 119y} 18} 0} SJaplACid o1 sdays BUP{E] pUE Aunco el
sjulod sseo9e auluol) 1s8} Ajjennw ssouoe swwelboid ay; 03 syuiod
80 Aepy | Auoyuy 19N 0} sdiysieuped sjdoad buioddng | sseooe auljuod) pue suoyds|a) jje
Jayjo jo digy ay} 1sijus |m swweibold | fo Buiddoys AssysAw Bupenspun
MIOM 118y} JO 8sInoo ay} Buunp
puiobuo Sih] e} Janoosip Asy} abpsimouy Jo jjesloys
8N Aue jo wea) ay} Ua|e ||Im siauned
‘80Inosal Buuies e se awwelBoid 8y} o} yoeoidde
Bulobup SI90IHO 19010 (H 8 N) MaIAayY pue Bulojuop PBLLIOJU| PUE JUSJSISUOD B
4% N [B30] SSI|iin O} SNURUOD |IM SI8ULEBd | gpiacud siauped oy} Aq pakojdwa
80 11B]S Mau Jo uoponpul Jels auipuody 1ey; bunnsug
Jaquisydag | Auoyuy |9\ | Jo} syoed sjdoad Buipioddng ey Buisiin
Aq swwelbold ay} poddns jim sisuped
9oue||dwoo Jo uoieulLEXd Aoljod uoposuuooal
80 AON Jold uiney| ue apnjoul [jim Bullojuow Joeiu0D paaibe sawweibold ay} yum
‘g0 pue 5asd | Aidwoo (le jey) pue sjuswebuelle
80 AON uuep an 0} papodal sbuipuly pue pajojuotu |BLIS}a) pUB SS820E BAlOL}Sal

aq |im Aoyjod uoposuuodal AJunoo ay |

Aidde siapinoid ou jey; Buunsug

:Aq swwelboud

a|doad Buioddng ayy
0] uopedd Ul uoew.loul
pue sse2oe anoiduwl|

Page 23



Appendix 2 Response to the Audit Commission Report

Adult Services Directorate
Brenchley House

123-135 Week Street
Maidstone

Kent ME14 1RF

Tel: 01622 694888

Fax: 01622 694910

Ask for Oliver Mills

Date: 29 January 2008
Dear Pam
KENT COUNTY COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO THE AUDIT COMMISSION REPORT

The Council are pleased that the strengths of leadership and partnership have been recognised and
that the Audit Commission has judged that our prospects for improvement are promising. We feel
that the action plan arising from the inspection will further strengthen the service.

The Programme’s partners have been involved in developing the action plan and are keen to oversee
its implementation.

There is a detailed action plan in response to the Audit Commission recommendations, and this is
summarised below.

e We will strengthen the strategic approach by refreshing the 5 Year Strategy, in full consultation
with partners and service users. To do this we will also use existing groups
and forums to ensure that we have addressed detailed service points identified in the report.

e We will improve performance management and governance by assisting key stakeholders to
develop a sense of ownership. We will develop the performance reporting arrangements, giving
greater priority to these at meetings of the Commissioning Body. New stakeholders, and other
interested parties will be assisted to develop their understanding of the programme by the
provision of a glossary at all meetings and a structured induction pack.

e We will improve the approach to value for money, working within the Cross Authority Group to
refine benchmarking processes for better assessment of local services. All future strategic
reviews will explore value for money as well as the services. As new or revised services are
commissioned the implications of cost and quality will be reported to the Commissioning Body.
The actions on performance and governance will also strengthen the value for money approach.

e We will improve service user involvement by developing relationships with existing consultative
groups and forums. Service user involvement in contract specification, monitoring and review will
be further developed. We will explore how service users may feel better empowered to give
constructive feedback. All future consultations will be fully planned and agreed in advance by
both the Core Strategy Development Group and the Commissioning Body.

e We will improve access and information with a focus on better induction and training for
frontline staff. All information and handbooks will be reviewed to ensure clarity and to enable
providers to understand and benefit from existing financial incentives for enhanced performance.
We will explore the opportunity to undertake structured mystery shopping exercises with

- 10 -

CB 20.03.08 Audit Commission Response

Page 24



neighbouring Supporting People programmes, so that the results may be used to inform
progress. The Commissioning Body has now agreed the local connection and reconnection
policy, and further work has been put in hand to enable this to function fully.

The detailed action plan will be discussed and agreed at the next available meeting of the
Commissioning Body in March 2008. Its implementation will then form a part of the overall
performance management reporting arrangements to that Body.

Yours sincerely

Oliver Mills

Managing Director

Kent Adult Social Services

Copy to: Claire Martin, Head of Kent Supporting People Team
Oliver Mills, Managing Director

Caroline Highwood, Director, Resources

Melanie Anthony, Performance and Review Manager

Oliver Mills

Managing Director
Please note: Any information provided in this letter about a client may be disclosed to that client unless indicated otherwise

-11 -

CB 20.03.08 Audit Commission Response

Page 25



Item No: 7.

REPORT
By: Caroline Highwood — Director of Resources, Adult Social
Services

To: Supporting People in Kent Commissioning Body
20 March 2008

Subject: Budget & Growth

Classification: Unrestricted

For Information

Summary: An Update on the 5 year Finance Planning from April
2008 to March 2014

1.0 Introduction

Following the notification of grant allocations from the Department of
Communities and Local Government (DCLG), the Supporting People Team has
revised their OS-year forecast. Previous indications were that the
implementation of the proposed Supporting People Distribution Formula could
have resulted in a reduction in funding from £32 million to £28 million over a
period of time. However the indicative figures for the current Comprehensive
Spending Review period indicate that Kent will receive £32 million in each of
the next three years.

Subsequent grant funding may be dependent on the Outcomes information
that Supporting People providers send to the University of St Andrews. The
University of St Andrews is the agent for the DCLG for client record forms
(indicating the number of people using the service), and Outcomes (data
indicating the success or otherwise for service users of the Programme’s
interventions).

The Commissioning Body will be aware that the Programme has accumulated
a considerable amount of savings. The Commissioning Body will be asked to
make decisions about spending the accumulated savings over the next three
financial years. The most significant of these is the proposed increase in

- 1=
CB 20.03.08 Budget & Growth

Page 26



floating support services for a fixed period of 2 years. The proposals are
outlined in this report.

2.0 Inflationary Uplift

* Provision will be made for future years’ inflation uplifts; subject to final
confirmation by the Commissioning Body, year on year.

3.0 Accommodation Based Services

The strategic review of short-term supported housing in conjunction with
needs analysis identified services that should be included in bids to the
Housing Corporation for grant funding. Originally financial forecasting had
factored these services into the 5-year plan as commencing in the financial
year 2010/11.

These services are:-

Young People at Risk in Sevenoaks, Tunbridge Wells & Sevenoaks

People with Mental Health Problems in Ashford and Tunbridge & Malling
Women Fleeing Domestic Violence in Sevenoaks/Tonbridge & Malling Areas
Misusing Alcohol in West Kent

Teenage Parents in Maidstone

The Core Strategy Development Group has recommended to the
Commissioning Body that the Programme funds Floating Support services to
these service users until the accommodation services can be commissioned
The identified funding reserved for accommodation services would be
converted into a proportion of 313 floating support units

4.0 Floating Support Waiting List for B & C Banding

The Kent Supporting People Team inherited a number of Floating Support
clients banded on ‘B’ & ‘C’ Grades. Because of the influx of those on an ‘A’
band we have been unable to allocate these service users to a service.

At the last Commissioning Body it was agreed that funding could be made
available for 3 months to assist in clearing the waiting list for those listed on
the B’ & ‘C’ bands. The Supporting People Team have asked the
Commissioning Body members to extend this funding so that potential service
users can receive the service for up to the agreed two years duration of service.

CB 20.03.08 Budget & Growth

Page 27



5.0 Floating Support Waiting List for A Banding

Due to extensive advertising of the Supporting People Floating Support Service
the referrals for Floating Support services has far exceeded the availability of
units. To assist in clearing the waiting list the Supporting People Team asked
the Core Strategy Development Group to recommend to the Commissioning
Body that additional funding from savings is applied to Floating Support
Services for the next two years. It is anticipated that this will considerably
contribute to the reduction in waiting times for those in Band A.

6.0 Home Improvement Agencies Handyperson Services in West Kent

It is anticipated that the East Kent and Coastal Primary Care Trust will be
funding Handyperson services within east Kent over the next three years. It is
proposed that the Supporting People Programme match funds Handyperson
services in West Kent over the next three years. This has been an identified
gap in services, and will assist older people, and disabled people in
maintaining their housing, and therefore their independence. This is a key
priority for housing, health, and adult social services, as well as Supporting
People.

7.0 Service User Involvement

The Supporting People programme has been investing in enabling Service
Users to access qualifications and is paying for two ex-Service Users to be
involved in the monitoring and review of services. The funding for the above
services have been met for the last two years from the Administration grant.
Due to the reduction in the administration grant from April 2008, the
Supporting People Team requests that a recommendation is made by the Core
Strategy Development Group that this funding is incorporated into the main
grant.

8.0 Equality Impact Assessment
This will form part of the Project Plan
9.0 Financial Impact Assessment

The cumulative value of these recommendations is llik‘ely to be within the
region of £4m in 2008/09. This is affordable within current assumptions.

CB 20.03.08 Budget & Growth

Page 28



10.0 Conclusion

Now that we have greater certainty of funding levels for the next 3 years of the
programime, it is appropriate that the Programme utilises the savings that have
been accumulated in order to further enhance the services that have already
been commissioned over the last year or so. The savings can only be spent
once and therefore floating support will need to be expanded, and then
contracted as the accumulated savings reduce assuming no future increases
in grant.

11.0 Recommendation

i) Additional floating support is commissioned to impact on waiting lists in
the A, B, and C Bands.

ii) A Handyperson scheme should be provided within West Kent

1i)  That the funding identified for accommodation-based services sho
tendered for as floating support and converted into accommodation-
based services as the services come on stream.

be

iv) That service user qualifications and involvement in monitoring and
review should be funded via the main grant.
V) That an approximate figure of just over £4 million is applied to achiev/ g

this in 2008/09, and subsequently in 2009/10. This is subject to
tendering and further financial scoping of the recommendations.

Members of the Commissioning Body will note that these recommendatiohs
and the figures given in Appendix One do not include the impact of the gne-off
bid referred to in the report tabled later in this agenda under item 11

The Commissioning Body is asked to agree the above proposals.

-
cT Lo
Claire Martin WIL 10
Head of Supporting People

01622 221179

Andrea Coleman
Senior Finance and IT Officer
01622 694877

Appendix 1: Budget and Growth Five-Year Forecast

CB 20.03.08 Budget & Growth

Page 29



ymoIn @ 33png 80°€0°0Z 90

Apog Buiuoissiwwo) Aq pealbe aq 0} asealoul o sajey ainnd ,

29¢e's- 810'2- ze9 9EY'T SL¥'e  |pes‘e Buireg
810'2- 289 98¥'2 Sy’ v25'9  [9/.'8 /g sBuiaeg paasiyoy
yye'e- 059'2- $08°L- |66 60L'e- |282'e- (puadg pejoadxg sss| juel9 pejoadx3) souejeg
69€'SE GL9'VE 628'€E  |F00'EE  |VEL'SE |L2'¥E [ejoL [enuuy

800°¢- 680t Buipun4 juswdojanaq aoirlag
69¢'E GL9'vE 628'ce  |2lo'oe  |vEl'se [88L'0e yldn Ateuoggejuy
GL9'VE 628'cE y00'sE  |PEL'SE  |L/Z'¥E |96G'62 SjuaWHWWOo) Joeiu0)
Gz0'ze G20'ze Ge0'ze  |seo'ze  |szo'ze [szo'ze 000, JuEID
¥L02Z/EL02 | €L02/2L0Z | 2L/LLOZ | LLIOLOZ |0L/6002| 60/8002

jseoalo4 Jea) G ajdoad Buijioddng
ymoug pue jabpng | xipuaddy

3SE0210 IedX 9AIJ YiMmoin pue jadpng:1 xipuaddy

Page 30



Item No: 8

REPORT
By: Caroline Highwood - Director of Resources, Adult Services
To: Supporting People in Kent Commissioning Body
20 March 2008

Subject: Local Area Agreement 2
Classification: Unrestricted

For Information
Summary: This report gives information regarding the

involvement of the Kent Supporting People Programme
in the second Local Area Agreement and asks the Core
Strategy Development Group to recommend a target to
be set for the programme.

1.0 Introduction

The Kent Supporting People Programme has been included in the first Local
Area Agreement and Public Service agreement and has successfully met its
target. The next Local Area Agreement (LAA2) is currently being agreed and the
programme once again has the opportunity to contribute.

2.0 National Context

The new Performance Framework for Local Authorities and Local Authority
Partnerships sets out the single set of 198 national indicators which will

underpin performance measurement in local government in the future.
http:/ /www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/nationalindicator

3.0 Making the agreement

In each area, the Local Area Agreements will include up to 35 of the 198
national indicators. In Kent, the Kent Partnership Board is responsible for

-1-

CB 20.03.08 Local Area Agreement 2

Page 31



negotiating the LAA2 targets. The 35 indicators have been agreed with the
Government Office for the South East (GOSE) and are available on the Kent

Partnership website
http: / /www.kentpartnership.org.uk/documents/summarv%200{%20provisionally%20
agreed%20indicators%2011108.doc

The targets to be achieved against each of the 35 indicators must now be
devised and agreed with GOSE by 31 March. It is anticipated that the
Agreement will be signed by Ministers in June 2008.

4.0 Indicator Definition
The Supporting People National Indicator (NI)
NI 141 Number of vulnerable people achieving independent living

has been included in the new agreement. The indicator measures the number of
people who have moved on from short term supported accommodation in a
planned way, as a percentage of all service users that have left such a service.
This data is already collected via quarterly workbook returns and is reported to
Communities and Local Government as Key Performance Indicator 2 (KPI2).

Further technical definition of NI 141 is contained within Appendix Two.

This indicator differs from that set in the previous LAA, which included planned
move on from floating support services. The Commissioning Body will note that
move-on from floating support services is excluded from this indicator in LAA2.

5.0 Target Setting

As supporting partners, the Core Strategy Development Group, Kent Housing
Group and the Commissioning Body are asked to put forward a stretch target
for this indicator for negotiation with GOSE.

As the nature of these indicators in LAA and LAA2 differ, there is no direct
relationship between the two and it should not be anticipated that such an
exceptional stretch in the number of move-ons across the county in LAAI,
could be achieved on the new indicator in LAA2.

Table 1 shows the KPI 2 figures for that last full year of data available. A

baseline for KPI 2 can be calculated as an average of 65.7%. It is reasonable to

suppose that a stretch of 5% can be achieved over the three-year period of the .

next LAA, though the Core Strategy Development Group acknowledged that this

target will present challenges to the partnership in the current housing climate.
-2

CB 20.03.08 Local Area Agreement 2

Page 32



Table 1
Baseline Data for KPI 2 for 2006/07

2006/07 Q 3%
2006/07 Q15 66.7%
2006/07 Q14 63.3%
2006/07 Q13 67.6%

However, it is worthy of note that because NI 141 reports on accommodation-
based services, the percentages of successful move-ons is affected by the
capacity of such services. For example, in a small service of 4 units one less
person moving on successfully will affect the percentage by 25%. In
accommodation-based services, smaller capacity services are more coOminon
than floating support services.

There are a number of factors, which will support the achievement of stretched
targets. These are the commissioning of new short-term services such as the
Outreach, Resettlement and Rough Sleepers service, the finalisation of an
agreement on a countywide Reconnection Policy and the grant allocation and
subsequent indicative grant allocations from the department of Communities
and Local Government (CLG) for the coming three-year period.

6.0 Equality Impact Assessment

An initial screening of this decision indicates that equality impact is low.
7.0 Financial Impact Assessment

There is no anticipated financial impact of this decision.

8.0 Conclusion

The governance bodies of the Supporting People programme in Kent has a role
to play in recommending stretch targets for LAA2 on NI 141 for negotiation with
GOSE. The programme has performed exceptionally well in the first LAA by
improving its processes, promoting close partnership working and tackling
barriers to improvement. The focus of the indicator chosen for LAA2 has
changed and now excludes floating support services. It is possible that an
increase of 5% can be achieved in the number of services users who have moved
on in a planned way from short term accommodation based services, as a
percentage of total service users who have left such services and therefore that

-3-

CB 20.03.08 Local Area Agreement 2

Page 33



a percentage of 71% can be achieved. In its February meeting, the Core Strategy
Development Group recommended this stretch target to the Commissioning
Body.

9.0 Recommendation

Following the recommendation of the Core Strategy Development Group, the
Commissioning Body is asked to agree that the target negotiated with GOSE on
National Improvement Indicator 141 is a 5% stretch applied to available
baseline data .

Melanie Anthony
Performance and Review Manager

Tel: 01622 694937
Background Information: None

Appendix 1: Technical Definition of National Improvement Indicator 141

CB 20.03.08 Local Area Agreement 2

Page 34



Appendix 1 Technical Definition of National Improvement Indicator 141

NI 141: Number of vulnerable people achievihg independent living
Is data provided by the LA or a Y |Is this an existing indicator? Y

local partner?

he aim is to measure the extent to which housing related support (Supporting
People) helps people move on in a planned way to more independent living

he indicator measures the number of service users (i.e. people who are
eceiving a Supporting People Service) who have moved on from supported
accommodation in a planned way, as a percentage of total service users
ho have left the service.

he indicator applies to the following types of accommodation based
ervices;

Short term based accommodation services (less than 2 years)

Direct access accommodation (where the intended length of stay is less
than a month)

Also how outreach services are able to support people to move onto more
ettled accommodation;

Moving rough sleepers into hostels; or

Supporting service users to move on from unstable accommodation into
supported housing or permanent housing. Unstable accommodation can
include sleeping on friends floors staying in overcrowded
accommodation, squatting, sleeping in care

his indicator does not include resettlement services as the outcomes for
hese services should be included under NI 142. This indicator defines a
planned move to a more independent outcome that has been agreed with a
ervice user as part of the support planning process. A more independent
outcome may be linked to the provision of support. An independent
outcome does not always have to involve a service user moving in to their
own flat, it can involve a service user moving back with family provided that
his outcome support the individual achieve greater independence.

A ‘planned move’ could involve a move to the following

A supported housing scheme

Permanent accommodation

Back to the service users family or

Other types of planned move .

he indicator defines ‘unplanned moves’ as the following

Abandonment

Disappearance

Evictions or departures due to a notice

Taken in to custody

Sleeping rough and

Other unplanned moves e.g. friend’s floor

-5-

CB 20.03.08 Local Area Agreement 2

Page 35



NI 141: Number of vulnerable people achie\/ing independent living (continued)

A move to the following options is not considered a move to more
independent outcome and therefore is also defined as unplanned

Acute psychiatric hospital

A long stay hospital or hospice

Deaths are excluded from the calculation apart from suicides which are
counted as an unplanned outcome on the basis that support services are
ntended to prevent suicides. Where a household moves on, for instance
oman with children moving on from a refuge or a family moving on from a
homelessness hostel, only one outcome should be shown for each household.

X100

Y
here:
= the number who have moved on in a planned way to independent living;

A short term service has ¢ Good performance is typified
100 service users, of which by a high percentage
20 depart during the :
quarter. Of these, 12 have
moved on in a planned way
o greater independence.
‘The proportion who have
moved on in a planned way;
s therefore: ‘

12}, 100 = 60%
20

y = the total number of service users who have moved on.

Quarterly (every February, ¢ e |Local authority. Data is obtained
May, August, November) [ = by the provider sending a
quarterly return to the
Administering Authority. All
authorities then submit to CLG on
a quarterly basis through the
Supporting People Local System.

Number for data items x
and y F
Local authorities; Supporting People Teams

ero

Single tier and county council
.spkweb.org.uk/subject/Quality: and monitoring/Performance
ramework/

CB 20.03.08 Local Area Agreement 2

Page 36




Item No: 9

REPORT

By: Caroline Highwood - Director of Resources, Adult
Social Services

To: Supporting People in Kent Commissioning Body
20 March 2008

Subject: Service Specification for Community Alarm Services

Classification: Unrestricted

For Information

Summary: This report asks the Commissioning Body to open
discussions around the Service Specification for
Community Alarms.

1.0 Introduction

At the Commissioning Body meeting held on the 10 September 2007 it was
agreed that the Team would carry out a market testing exercise on the
- current community/social alarms services for older people across the
county.

2.0 Consultation

In order to facilitate this process, a consultative group consisting of local
Emerging Role of Sheltered Housing (EroSH) members was formed to aid
discussion and comment. This group met on three occasions to assist
putting together the Alarm Service Specification attached at Appendix 1.

Service user consultation on the specification began in October 2007 and
concluded on 31 January 2008. There were no significant comments
against the proposed specification with the majority of comments
concerning the current length of time to answer the alarm call.

-1-
CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Communiip; géaér?’?ervices



3.0 Market Testing

The Supporting People Team have been unable to gain a true
understanding of the appropriate costs for the provision of a basic alarm, a
call centre response and the provision of maintenance for the unit. There
are differences in operation across the County, and lack of clarity as to
what is included in the current costs funded by Supporting People (for
example the nature of the actual response, and whether maintenance
costs are included or excluded). This means that a more in depth analysis
of the position is required before steps can be put in place to meet the
Commissioning Body’s aspiration, and to achieve the proposed revisions to
the service.

4.0 Conclusions

The Core Strategy Development Group requested that the Supporting
People Team write to those providers who did not respond to the initial
market-testing questionnaire, underlining the significance of this process
to meet the Commissioning Body’s aims. Further negotiations must be
undertaken with providers to better understand and isolate the true cost
of alarm provision. This is not to make any change to any services
currently relied upon by current recipients. It will however allow clarity for
future provision and for the SP programme only to pay for legitimate costs
of providing a community alarm. The original aspiration did include the
view that any excess funding would be ring-fenced and remvested to
provide wider access to community alarms.

5.0 Recommendations

The Commissioning Body is asked to note the contents of this report
Kevin Prior

Procurement & Commissioning Manager

01622 696198

Background Information:

None

Appendix One: Alarm Service Specification for the Provision of A

Community Alarm Service
Appendix Two: Those who attended ERoSH discussion groups

-2 .
CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Communitpéﬁuénggervices



SERVICE SPECIFICATION FOR THE PROVISION
OF A COMMUNITY ALARM SERVICE

The specification describes the Service to be delivered under the Steady State Contract
for Provision of Supporting People Services.

Working in partnership to provide high-quality, cost-effective and flexible
welfare services for the vulnerable people of Kent, which promote independent
living, facilitate social inclusion and keep them safe and secure. It is envisaged
that welfare services will in time complement other service provision across the

county.
(Kent Five Year Supporting People Strategy 2005-10)

1.

2.2

23

24
25

3.2

3.3

Introduction

The Kent County Council Supporting People Team is charged with the commissioning and
procurement of alarm services throughout the county. At the present time, provision is
variable and price varies considerably. The Supporting People Team would wish to make
the delivery and price of the provision of alarm services far more explicit whilst attempting to
achieve consistency throughout the county.

It should be clearly stated that these service specifications do not include a physical
presence response. Community Alarm Service provision does not include payments for
physical attendance to individuals and should be limited to advice, help and support given
remotely.

Facility

The Supporting People Team is seeking to purchase a monitoring service (or a number of
monitoring services) for existing community alarm services. This service will be required on
a 24-hour basis for every day of the contract.

Additionally we would wish to purchase regular testing arrangements of the individual

alarm units in line with standard TSA requirements. :

It is expected that the monitoring service provider would have a good knowledge and level
of understanding of community/health/social care support services in the local area where
the accommoaodation exists, including the voluntary sector, and that this knowledge is
used to provide effective telephone response and support to individual clients and their
families.

Any additional services to be provided must be fully described and priced.

In cases where the monitoring service provider is also the provider of the physical

alarm equipment, the alarm equipment should meet the technical requirements of a
Telecare service. If this is not the case, the equipment provider will make every effort to
upgrade equipment or, in the case of hardwired provision, provide an appropriate dispersed
system that can link to a Telecare service should the service user be assessed as requiring
a Telecare Service by KCC Adult Services.

Social Alarm Call Handling — Quality Requirements

The Supporting People Team requires that the service meets the standards of the
prescribed contract monitoring and review tool, namely the Quality Assessment Framework
(QAF) Lite. This monitoring tool is specifically designed for use with community alarm
services.

In addition, providers must be accredited with part 1 of the Telecare Services Association
(TSA) Code of Practice at the outset of the contract.

The supplier shall have in place a quality management system to ensure internal control of
quality and consistency of practice. Contractors are required to describe the systems that
they operate.

-3

CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Communitﬁg ngaérzé’éervices



3.4

42

4.3

44

4.5

5.1

The supplier shall be committed to a process of continuous service improvement.
Contractors are required to describe their service improvement plans and demonstrate their
past performance in service improvement. This will include the maintenance of the TSA
standards as set out above.

Call Handling Equipment
The supplier shall fulfil the call handling activities arising under this contract using
appropriate call handling equipment.

Al calls from social alarm and Telecare systems shall be received and managed on call
handling equipment that is specifically designed to receive calls from such systems.
Contractors shall provide details of the equipment that they have installed and the age of
that equipment.

The systems deployed by the contractor shall be compatible with the equipment utilised by
the landlord. Details of these systems will be made available at a later date.

Contractors shall confirm that the call handling equipment that they use is able to correctly
receive and decode messages transmitted from these systems, can correctly display

the content of those messages to system operators and can correctly construct, encode and
send messages to respond to those systems and remotely manage, configure and
programme that equipment.

The landlord may reserve the right to change or augment its installed field equipment during

the life of the contract, without an increase in unit monitoring costs or a decrease in key

service quality indicators. It should be noted that certain Telecare and Telehealth products

or services may affect the unit price. The landlord shall give the monitoring service

reasonable notice of any such change in installed equipment types. Contractors shall certify:

a) Their commitment to meet the customer’s requirements.

b) The range of equipment that they are currently able to support on their call handling
systems.

c) Their intention to develop their call handling systems to support all social alarm and
Telecare products entering the UK market during the period of this contract.

The contractor shall operate and properly maintain call handling equipment with sufficient

capacity to fulfil the requirements of the contract associated with this specification, in

addition to any other work transacted via that call handling equipment.

It is possible that the number of connections monitored under this contract may increase,

Contractors are required to certify that

a) they currently have sufficient system capacity within their call handling equipment.

b) they have the capacity to accommodate the landlord's expected levels of business
growth without disruption to service quality.

Each contractor shall certify the additional capacity that it is able to offer to the landlord/SP
Team and the number of new connections that could be absorbed in any 12 month period.

Business Continuity Arrangements

The contractor shall provide the specified services on a continuous basis during the periods
specified.

The Supporting People Team wishes to assess the ability of the contractor to meet this

requirement. Accordingly, contractors shall provide

a) A description of the arrangements that they currently have in place for ensuring
business continuity for their services.

b) A copy of the current risk assessments underpinning their business continuity planning.

¢) A copy of their business continuity plan.

Data Ownership and Protection

All data transferred to the contractor at the start of the contract or arising as a result of the
performance of the contract shall be and remain the property of the Supporting People
Team and/or the landlord.

-4 -

CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Communitb/élgalémélﬁervices



6.2.1

6.3

6.4

6.5.1

7.2

73

10.
10.1

10.2
10.3
10.4

10.5

The contractor shall process such data on the Supporting People Team’s behalf, shall
facilitate timely access to that data and shall yield up all data to the Supporting People
Team on termination of the contract.

All contractors shall confirm that their Data Notification with the Information Commissioner
extends to cover such data processing activity and shall provide a copy of their current Data
Notification.

The contractor shall operate appropriate systems to ensure that all data is protected from
loss, corruption or misuse. Details of these systems shall be provided by all contractors.
The contractor shall ensure that all of the data held within electronic systems operated by
the contractor is retained for a period of at least 12 months from the date of creation, update
or last access, whichever is most recent.

The contractor shall indemnify the Supporting People Team in respect of loss or corruption
of its data. The contractor shall indemnify the customer in respect of any breach of Data
Protection legislation arising from their own actions or those of their employees, servants or
agents.

Data Integrity

The Supporting People Team recognises that the details of the personal circumstances of
service users will change over time. The contractor will be committed to ensuring that its
data is accurate, up to date and, where held on more than one system, internally consistent.

As a result of this contract, the landlord’s data will be held within its own housing

management system and the contractor's call handling systems and notifications of

changes to data may be received by the landlord’s staff or the contractor’s staff. All

contractors shall provide a:

a) Method statement for ensuring that relevant data, wherever received is updated in both
systems on a timely basis.

b) Copy of their own procedure for ensuring that data entered by their staff is checked for
accuracy

Data held in respect of individual service users should be checked for accuracy on at least

an annual basis and matched with the landlord’s records to ensure ongoing accuracy.

Data Coding

The contractor will agree a data coding scheme with the landlord to ensure that all of the.
landlord’s data is entered and maintained in a consistent form that will support analysis of
user and activity data in a manner that meets the business needs. The contractor shall
operate the agreed data coding scheme.

Data Entry

Tendering parties are required to describe the arrangements that they will make for the
creation and update of the landlord's service user and scheme records within the
contractor’s systems.

Call Handling

Contractors are required to provide a copy of their current call handling procedures and the
training specification that they use to ensure that their staff are competent to provide the
service that seek to provide.

The contractor shall provide a high quality service that is focussed on identifying and
responding to the needs of individual service users in an appropriate and empathic manner.
The contractor shall ensure that calls are answered courteously, in the manner agreed for
the landlord’s service users, and with due regard to the caller's needs and concerns.
Where urgent or necessitous circumstances are known to exist, the contractor will ensure
that appropriate action is taken in response to those circumstances.

Where urgent or necessitous circumstances arise, the contractor will ensure that service
users receive suitable guidance and reassurance until such time as the circumstances are
remedied and(or responsibility is passed to an appropriate other party.

-5-

CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Communig é&lgaerra ‘Fervices



10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

11

1.1

11.2

1.3

Where an alarm call results in a service user being admitted to hospital, taken into care or
otherwise displaced from their home, the contractor shall ensure that a written report is
forwarded to the landlord immediately.

Where the calls history for an individual service user would suggest a deterioration in that
individual's circumstances, the contractor shall forward a written report to the landlord
without undue delay.

The customer wishes to provide services that are tailored to its own mission, values and
business processes and are specific to the distinct needs of individuals and the service
promises that they have received. Accordingly, the contractor will be required to
demonstrate  that it can operate multiple procedures within its call handling processes.

The landiord may support individuals with special communications requirements. The
contractor will need to facilitate service to individuals who:

a) Require to communicate in a language other than English

b) Have a hearing or speech impairment

c) Have a cognitive impairment

d) Have a visual impairment

e) Have some other special communications requirement

The mechanisms used to communication with individuals with special needs shall deliver an
independent, objective and auditable record of the information provided to and received
from these individuals. Contractors shall provide method statement in respect of
communication and service delivery for individuals with special communications needs.
The Supporting People Team and Kent County Council wishes to develop a range of
customer-focussed Telecare services. The contractor will be required to work with KCC to
develop and implement a number of application and user specific procedures in respect of
these services.

The contractor will need to ensure that its staff can identify those individuals receiving
specialist services which require the use of customised procedures and that staff follow the
correct procedure for each customer and call circumstance. Contractors shall provide a
method statement covering this requirement and demonstrate their ability to fulfil the
requirement.

The contractor shall ensure that the iandlord’s staff (and Supporting People Team receive
appropriate information on request) in respect of incidents occurring on the schemes in
general and at the time when staff take a scheme onto local call handling. Such information
should include details of emergencies and other circumstances dealt with and details of any
service users about which there may be concerns.

The landlord may wish to demonstrate its services to potential customers and service users.
The contractor shall facilitate and support such demonstrations by providing appropriate call
handling services.

Handling Fire Alarm Calls

The landlord is required to undertake a fire risk assessment for each building and this
document shall be both available for inspection within the scheme and its contents made
available to the monitoring centre.

Signals from fire alarm systems or individual smoke detectors should be handled in
accordance with the CFOA Model Agreement on Remotely Monitored Fire Alarms Systems.
Test calls from fire alarm systems should be recorded but not passed to the Fire Brigade.
Signals from fire alarm systems or individual smoke detectors located outside the Fire
Brigade area in which a Telecare Response Centre is located should be passed to the
appropriate Fire Brigade. .

When the all clear is given the monitoring centre should arrange for the system to be reset
as necessary. . .

-6 -

CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Communi%élgaé—na.ﬁervices



12.
121

12.2

12.3

13.
13.1

13.2

13.3

14.
141

142

14.3

15.
15.1

Proactive Outbound Calls

In certain circumstances, the landlord may require that the contractor place calls to all
residents of selected sheltered housing schemes served by grouped alarm systems to
provide those residents with important information. Contractors shall confirm their ability to
make such calls to all residents within such a sheltered housing scheme.

As part of its development of specialist Telecare services, the landlord/Supporting

People Team may require that calls be made to nominated individual service users on a
regular time-scheduled basis. Such calls may be made for the purpose of obtaining
information or providing an activity reminder to those individuals. Contractors shall confirm
their ability to provide such a facility, provide a method statement for ensuring that such calls
are placed at the required time and meet their required purpose and a pricing basis for such
calls.

Similarly, the use of specialised equipment or need for specialist care may require
referrals to specialised agencies, the customer or service user families. Contractors
should provide a method statement or existing protocols with other agencies or customers
for this service provision.

Access Control

Where sheltered schemes have door entry systems, the contractor will be required to
determine and permit entry of individuals visiting that scheme during times when the
customer’s staff are not on duty on that scheme. Additionally, contractors will be required to
maintain a record of all occasions when access was granted. The information to be
captured in that record shall be agreed with the landlord. Contractors are required
to provide a method statement for the management and recording of this activity.

Where remote electronically operated key safes are installed within the landlord’s premises
the contractor will be required to determine whether and when those key safes are
unlocked and to whom such key access is provided. Based on information given by the
landlord Contractors are required to provide a method statement for management and
recording of this activity.

Where access to premises is facilitated via a numerical combination device the contractor
will be required to hold details of that combination code within the premises / user
record. Inthe  event that access is required to premises utilising combination code
systems, the contractor will be required to determine whether, when and to whom this code
is given. Additionally,  contractors will be required to maintain a record of all occasions

when the combination code has been issued. The information to be captured shall be
agreed with the landlord. Contractors are required to provide a method statement for
management and recording of this activity.

Relocation of the Call Handling Facility

In the event that the contractor determines to relocate their call handling facility during the
period of the contract, or any carry-over period following the initial expiry of the contract, the
contractor shall bear the full costs of any reprogramming of the landlord’s equipment arising
from this event.

Should the contractor decide to use a call forwarding or redirection arrangement instead of
reprogramming of equipment, the costs of this arrangement shall be borne by the
contractor.

Any relocation of the call handling facility, other than as a result of force majeur, shall be

discussed and agreed with the landlord prior to any internal decision to commit to that
relocation.

Indirect Telephone Connections

Indirect telephone connection arrangements shall include any arrangement that results in a
call from the landlord’s equipment being routed to the contractor’s call handling systems via
a non-geographical numbering system, a call forwarding or call redirection system or least
cost routing system.

-7 -

CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Communitpél&&%ervices



152

16.
16.1

16.2

17.
17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4
17.5

17.6

18.
18.1

18.2

18.3

In the event that the contractor wishes to utilise an indirect telephone connection facility,
the landlord must be consulted prior to utilising such a facility. The customer will need to be
assured of the:

a) Capacity of the facility in respect of the number of simultaneous connections contacted
and delivered via that facility

b) Reliability of that facility in respect of % availability and up-time

c) Acceptability of any delay to receipt of calls arising from routing calls via that facility

d) The impacts of any multiplex ratios, audio compression and digital / analogue
conversion algorithms and frequency response characteristics associated with that
facility on call quality in respect of speech intelligibility and dynamic range and the
reliability of command and data transmission ‘

e) The impacts of any additional end-to-end network latency arising from use of that facility
and the impact of this on technical service quality and data / control signalling.

For the purposes of assessment, comparison will be made with the relevant average

achieved performance metric of the British Telecom UK telephone network.

Complaints
Should the contractor receive any complaint from one of the landlord’s service users, or

their  representative, this shall be accurately recorded and promptly passed to the

landlord for investigation.

In the event that the landlord/Supporting People Team receives a complaint about the
performance of the service being provided by the contractor, the contractor shall co-
operate fully and openly with the landlord/Supporting People Team to investigate the
circumstances of that complaint and to identify the substance of the complaint, along with
any with errors that took place and learning from that incident.

Key Performance Indicators & Management Information

The Supporting People Team shall measure performance of the contractor and the
contract using a range of KPI's and performance management tools as set out in the
Supporting People Contract. .

The contractor shall provide the Landlord/Supporting People Team with regular
management reports.

The Supporting People Team will specify the content of the above reports in discussion with
the contractor. The Supporting People Team and/or contractor may identify additional
reports that may further identify performance or issues.

Reports may be provided in printed or electronic format, as agreed between the
Supporting People Team and the contractor.

Contractors shall complete the template using ACTUAL DATA for their organisation (over a
specific time period), adding other KPI or information regularly reported.

Contractors should identify existing customers that they provide a similar range of
information to for their specific data.

Contract Start Up

The Landlord/Supporting People Team will provide the contractor with details of each of the
sheltered housing schemes to be monitored under the contract.

The Landlord will provide the contractor with details of each service user to be monitored
under the contract.

Contractors are required to provide a detailed project plan for set up of the new service.
This should include details of:

- Data transfer arrangements

- Any recoding / reprogramming of equipment
- Customer liaison arrangements

- Client contractor liaison arrangements

- Publicity arrangements

- Information on service users

-8-

CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Ccmmuni%arén 4S‘frvices



19.
191

20
20.1

20.2

21.
211

21.2

213

- Local information as regards services
- Information on landlord’s procedures and scheme details
- ALL costs to be included in the pricing document

Out of Hours / Weekend Arrangements

Contractors should provide details of arrangements for providing the service outside normal
office hours. This should include:

- Detailed staffing arrangements — specific numbers & escalation procedures in case of
emergency.

- With regard to KPI performance if Out of Hours service varies significantly from the overall
averages.

Recent Audit & Inspection Outcomes
The contractor shall provide details of any inspection/review of its services carried out over
the last 18 months (if prior to that the most recent — clearly dated).

The contractor should also provide results (only) of TSA, Audit Commission and Housing
Corporation inspection of parent company.

Equipment Fault Reporting and Management Service

The Landlord requires a 24/7 service to receive reports of faults in its installed social alarm
and telecare systems. This service shall receive reports of faults from service users or
automated alerts from systems. Additionally, the service shall carry out regular remote
equipment testing activities for identified installed systems.

When faults are reported or identified, the contractor shall seek to identify the cause of the
fault and rectify it remotely with the service user. In the event that the fault cannot be
remotely rectified, the contractor shall report the fault promptly to the relevant service
organisation.

All faults shall be recorded in a form to be agreed with the Landlord/Supporting People
Team. Such reports shall include the unique system identification, the nature of the fault,
the date and time when it was identified, reported to the service organisation and
resolved, the name of the service organisation and the reference number provided by the
service organisation.

Assignment and Sub-Contracting

221

The contractor shall not assign the contract of which this specification forms part or sub-
contract any element of the service without the customer’s express written agreement.

-9 -

CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Communitpé]@.g’rn%ervices



Appendix Two

Those consulted as part of the EroSH group

Rose Ellison (Maidstone Housing Trust)

Wendy Brooker (Maidstone Housing Trust)

Stella Collins (Maidstone Housing Trust)

Sheila Corbett (Dartford Borough Council)

Wendy Turner (Invicta Telecare)

Clare Skidmore (Kent Telecare Project Team)
Dominic Buckley (Hanover Housing Association)
Lynsey Todd (Thanet Community Housing Association)
Tina Trinder (Thanet Community Housing Association)
Richard Robinson (Ashford Borough Council)

Jackie Reith (In Touch Support Ltd)

Phil Cross (In Touch Support Lid)

Sonia Hicks (Invicta Telecare

Liz Spilman (Sanctuary Housing)

Angela Vince

‘ -10 -
CB 20.03.08 Service Specification for Communi%é\lgaénhgervices



Item No: 10

REPORT
By: : Caroline Highwood — Director of Resources, Adult Services
To: Supporting People in Kent Commissioning Body

20 March 2008

Subject: Growth Bid for Mental Health Scheme in Thanet

Classification: Unrestricted

For Decision

Summary: This report is concerned with a Private Finance
Initiative (PFI) bid for a seven unit accommodation-
based service in Thanet. The service is for people with
a diagnosed mental health problem.

1.0 Introduction

Organisations that wish to access Supporting People funding should follow the
process agreed by the Commissioning Body in September 2007. This requires
the production of a business plan that clearly shows how the proposed service
meets with strategic plans and will produce desired outcomes. The proposal
should gain the support of a member of the Commissioning Body and should
clearly set out the cost of the service.

The proposal is then submitted to the Supporting People Team for comment,
before being passed to the Core Strategy Development Group for discussion
with a view to a report going to the Commissioning Body for a funding
decision.

2.0 Details of Bid

The Eastern and Coastal Directorate of the Kent and Medway NHS and
Partnership Trust have compiled this bid which is supported by Thanet
District Council.

This service comprises accommodation built using funding available under the
Private Finance Initiative (PFI). The accommodation includes seven

-1-
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 47



independent units with one shared communal facility. The landlord is Housing
21, a Registered Social Landlord (RSL). The units are to be made available to
tenants on 17t November 2008.

The service will provide specialist health & social care services and housing
management as well as housing-related support. The RSL will provide the
housing management, specialist staff will provide the health and social care
and the contract for the housing-related support will be subject to tender by
the Supporting People Team should it be decided that the bid will be funded.

The service is designed to provide long-term support with an expectation that
tenants will move on where appropriate. Tenancies will be offered on an
Assured Tenancy basis. The Supporting People Team wishes to make the
comment that this appears therefore to be designed as long-term
accommodation although some referrals will be received from people in
hospital receiving acute services. The bid identifies that there is a “need to
provide a level of supported accommodation for a complex and hard to move
group of people.” (P7 Appendix One)

The bid identifies a broad range of strategies and a high demand for these
services as explained fully in section 3 “Strategic Context” of the bid
document. Thanet District Council’s housing strategy also mentions the East

Kent Joint Policy Planning Board (EK JPPB) which is said to support
developments such as this.

It is not possible for the Supporting People Team to comment on the amount
of hours necessary for neither the housing-related support nor its cost. The
price for similar accommodation-based services is benchmarked lower than
the quoted price in this bid.

4.0 Service User Consultation

Any service user consultation will have been undertaken by the Partnership
Trust although its nature is not set out within the bid documents.

5.0 Equality Impact Assessment

The Supporting People Team will undertake an Equality Impact Assessment as
part of the work to tender for any provision of housing related support

6.0 Financial Impact Assessment

The costs of this service are based on seven tenants, each receiving 12.5 hours
per week of housing related support at a guide price of £19.07 an hour. This

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 48



guide price is an estimate and not a price agreed by the Supporting People
Team. The guide price of the bid amounts to approximately £87k p.a.

7.0 Conclusions

This bid has followed the process set out for the commissioning of growth bids.
It has the backing of a member of the Commissioning Body and meets a
number of strategic plans and drivers. The price quoted is thought to be
largely indicative if it is accepted that the amount of hours of housing related
support needed is correct.

In order for the service to open by the‘target date of November 2008, a tender
exercise would need to take place and be completed by September at the latest
and preferably before that in order to recruit staff.

It should be noted that this bid forms a part of the wider PFI Better Homes
Active Lives bid and agreement to fund this initiative should not be seen as an
indication that any future PFI bids would automatically receive Supporting
People funding.

The Core Strategy Development Group expressed concern that in funding this
bid, a precedent for funding future PFI projects would be set. However, it was
acknowledged that the remaining current PFI projects were entered into in the
full knowledge that Supporting People funding was unlikely to be available.
Any further bids would have to abide by the growth process agreed by the
Commissioning Body in September 2007.

8.0 Recommendation

The Commissioning Body is asked to agree to this scheme being funded at a
guide price of 87k per annum.

Kevin Prior

Procurement & Commissioning Manager

01622 696198

With contributions from

Ute Vann - Policy & Strategy Officer

Sue Scammel - Planning & Development Manager (Mental Health)

Appendix 1 -~ Growth Bid Template
Appendix 2 - “Horizons” Growth Bid

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 49



. Appendix One

Supporting People Team
Growth Bid Template

All growth bids must be fully supported by a member of the Supporting People

Commissioning Body detailing how the bid will meet their own strategic objectives

and how this will support the SP Programme objectives. This should be attached as

an appendix to this document.

Providers submitting a growth bid should provide information by means of the

template below which sets out the business case. It should then be returned to the

Supporting People Team.

1 Organisation Details

1.1 Organisation name: Kent & Medway NHS & Social
Care Partnership Trust

1.2 Main address for correspondence: Redesign Team

Eastern & Coastal Area Offices
Littlebourne Road

Canterbury
CT1 1AX
1.3 Registered Office: _
(If different from above)
1.4 Person applying on behalf of the Company | Philippa Macdonald

or Consortium

1.5 Position in the Company:

Head of Service Redesign -
working age adults

1.6 Telephone Number:

01227 865839

1.7 Fax Number:

01227 812332

1.8 Email Address:

Philipa.macdonald2@kmpt.nhs.u
k

1.9 Website address:

http:/ /www.kmpt.nhs.uk/ekmhr

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 50




1 Organisation Details

edesign
http:/ /www.kmpt.nhs.uk/

1.10 | VAT Registration Number 654 4198 20

1.11 | Is your organisation a public limited company / limited company / a
partnership / a sole trader / registered as an Industrial & Provident Society /
has Charitable status / other:

If a Charity please indicate if your organisation is:
a)Unincorporated
b)A Trust
c)A Company

1.14 | Please state the registration
number of your organisation

Registered Charity no:

Registered Company no:

1.17 | Companies House Registration
Number of parent company (if
applicable)

Purpose The purpose of the business case is to provide a full statement of
reasons for the commissioning of a service. It should include all the
topics below and must have the full backing of at least one member

of the Commissioning Body.

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 51




Appendix Two

Supporting People Team Growth Bid

for ‘Horizons’ -

A supported housing and recovery service

Thanet Locality

Date: November 2007

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 52



Contents

1. SUummAary Of SEIVICE.......vuiuiiiiiiiiiiit et anes
2. Evidence of Need......ccouiiniiiiiiiiiiiii i
3. Strategic ContexXt....couitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie i
4. Service Implementation........c.cocoveviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
5. Anticipated OUtCOMES.......ccuiviiiiiniiiiiiiiiiii e,
6. TimMeESCAlES.. .ot
7. Financial Information............eooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiini e
8. Annex 1: East Kent Adult Mental Health Housing Needs
Assessment 2005........... [ OO

9. Supporting Statements.......cccoooeviiiiiiiiiiiiii

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 53



_ 1. Summary of the Service

1.1. Mental Health Services within the Eastern and Coastal Directorate of the Kent
and Medway NHS and Partnership Trust (KMPT), have been undergoing
review and redesign since 2004. A new model has been proposed to deliver
mental health services in the community, part of which includes the
development of intensive supported housing for people with severe mental
health problems. These are people who have traditionally been unable to
sustain tenancies either at an independent level or within traditional
supported accommodation, but do not require residential care. The service
will provide Housing Management by Housing 21, Specialist Health and
Social Care Services will be provided by KMPT and the accommodation
housing related support will be tendered by Kent County Council (KCC)
Supporting People Scheme. The East Kent local housing authorities, KCC
and KMPT as the home organisation, have supported the development of this
new service. They have committed to developing 33 units of accommodation
across the directorate. The service for the purpose of this document will be

referred to as Horizons.

1.2. Horizons is a whole systems service and will identify people across a raﬁge of
services, (inpatient units, rehabilitation and residential placements) that are
ready to move back into the local community. Horizons will provide this
vulnerable group of people the opportunity to reintegrate with their
communities with the level of support that they need to ensure that this is

successful.

1.3. Each locality within the directorate will have staff employed by KMPT who will
provide the specialist health and social care service for Horizons. The
relevant Registered Social Landlord (RSL) will provide housing support, in the
case of Thanet this will be Housing 21. It is also anticipated that there will be
a housing related support provider who will be commissioned by KCC
supporting people or its strategic partners. It is felt that 12.5 hours per unit
per week, 52 weeks per year, of housing related support will be required at a

-8-
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 54



cost of £19.07 per hour. The following table clarifies the roles and

responsibilities associated with housing management support,

related support and specialist health and social care services.

a) Housing Management (All below are Housing Officer Functions)

housing

Ensuring tenants are aware of and fulfil their contractual
commitments through tenancy (tenancy agreement and conditions)

Establishing, issuing and enforcing tenancy agreement.

Wi

Setting, collecting and accounting for rent and service charges i.e.
ensuring housing benefit claims are made and rent paid.

Organising health and safety checks i.e. gas and electrical equipment.

Organising inspection, repair and improvement of the property.

Upkeep of communal areas/gardens.

Nk

Maintenance/repairs/replacement fixtures and fittings i.e.
carpets/curtains /white goods/external repairs etc.

* These functions are all covered by Housing Benefit Eligible Rent Payments

b) Housing Related Support Services (Provided by Housing Related Support
Provider)

Develop an understanding of the landlord /tenant relationship in
terms of rights and responsibilities of each party.

2. Advice/Assistance in setting up utilities.

3. Assisting tenants to purchase/set up utilities, change of address
notification etc.

4, Advice on maintaining the property in good condition and giving
advice on reporting problems and repairs.

5. Advice on understanding the tenant handbook.

6. Provision of information about local community services and facilities
that tenant can access.

7. Initial guidance on personal safety and living independently.

8. Guidance on safety and security of the dwelling — including awareness
of neighbour nuisance and anti-social behaviour.

9. Advice/guidance on alarm systems and key fob entry systems etc

10. | Environmental risk assessment as appropriate to the service user.

11. | Advice and guidance on how to make a complaint about the landlord
and support services.

12. | Life skills, normally up to a maximum of 2 years.

13. | Empowering individuals to overcome the discrimination and stigma
associated with mental health problems.

14. | Supervising/monitoring good mental health and medication

15. | Assistance to gain access to employment and training.

16. | Assistance to find move—-on accommodation.

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 55



c) Specialist Health and Social Care Services (provided by Horizons)

1. Person Centred Planning (CPA)

2. Risk Assessment & Monitoring

3 Management of self-harm and behaviour (includes anti-social
behaviour).

4. Medication Management — ensure taken/monitor
effectiveness /monitor mental health state/monitor side effects.

5. Psychological social intervention.

6. Occupational Therapy/CBT

7. Rehabilitation service input if required

8. Issues relating to substance misuse.

9, Personal Hygiene issues.

10. | Eating/Dietary Planning

11. | Monitor/facilitate general health care needs/health promotion.

12. | Facilitating and maintaining engagement with the community i.e.
enabling access to leisure facilities, community services etc.

13. | Enabling access to volunteering, training/education and employment.

14. | Enabling daily living skills.

15. | Crisis Intervention.

16. | 24 hour on call support.

1.4

1.5.

. In Thanet (George Culmer Court) there will be 7 units and an additional

shared facility. The shared facility enables residents to have a communal
area for meetings etc, access to an area where activities of daily living (ADL)
can be assessed and developed, and a secure office space for service user files

etc.

People accessing Horizons will be in receipt of secondary services at the
enhanced CPA (care programme approach) level and will have a local
connection with the district. This means that each person will have a care co-
ordinator who will assess care needs, develop a care plan, implementation,
ongoing monitoring and formalised review of care. The care co-ordinator in
conjunction with the mental health team will also be responsible for ongoing
assessment and management of risk. It is anticipated that care co-ordination
will sit with the teams providing intensive health and social care support to
Horizons, and that these teams will be a specialist function within the
existing community teams. It is acknowledged that staff within the Horizon

-10 -

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 56



project will have protected case work in line with the units and not be diluted
by generic team responsibilities. It is also acknowledged that cover for annual
leave and sickness, will be provided by the wider mental health team in that
locality. It is proposed that the Team within the Horizons project will consist
of 2 qualified mental health professionals (IWTE band 7, IWTE band 5) and
support staff (2 WTE band 3) per locality.

1.6. The aim of Horizons is to enable and empower people to maximise their level
of functioning within their own home. As mentioned above needs including
support needs are identified via CPA, the specialist team responds to their
needs accordingly. The overall objective of Horizons is to monitor and
support individuals in their own homes seven days per week, 52 weeks per

year, with on call arrangements.

2. Evidence of Need

2.1.In the acute service approximately 20 plus patients at anyone time are
identified as being a ‘delayed discharge’. In essence this refers to people who
are thought well enough to leave hospital but appropriate placements have
yet to be found. These people often have complex needs and have
traditionally been unable to sustain tenancies either at an independent level
or within traditional supported accommodation. To identify this group a
number of needs assessments were conducted. One such needs assessment
was conducted utilising the data collated via patient census information:
Adult Mental Health Acute Inpatient Census December 2004; Rehabilitation
Inpatient Census December 2004; Single Agency Assessment Data for the
period June 2003 - December 2004 (Total 105 assessments with mental health
as basis for need); Service Shortfalls identified by the Community Mental Health
Teams; East Kent Continuing Care and Residential Care Placements Panel
November 04-February 05. Details of which are contained in annex 1. This
indicated that there was a need to provide a level of supported
accommodation for a complex and hard to move on group of people as

mentioned earlier.

-11 -
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 57



2.2.A further more recent need assessment completed by Kent Supporting
People’s team in November this year also highlighted the prevalence of people
with severe mental health problems within the Eastern & Coastal Directorate
locality. When compared against national data Thanet, Dover and Shepway
all show high rates of suicide in males with Thanet equally high in rate of
female suicides, indicating that these are areas of significant need. The
Report also noted that people with mental health problems are the client
group with the highest demand for services, this constituted from April -
September 2007 17.9% of all referrals. Within this 16.9% were identified as
having other multiple needs, 11.8% having substance misuse difficulties and
8.4% having physical/sensory difficulties. They too highlight the majority of
people referred for supported housing was either in some form of temporary
accommodation or in hospital. They concluded that more housing related
support is needed for this vulnerable group. It is felt that housing related
support services will be an important element of proposed community based
alternatives to hospital. They also note that service users and their carers
also highlight the need for more specialist supported housing for those with
high levels of support needs, on a longer term basis than has traditionally

been provided.

2.3.The Review of mental health servicés within the Eastern and Coastal
Directorate of KMPT, have been ongoing since 2004. Part of this has been the
restructuring of inpatient services and the development of specialist teams
that will assist the move on of people deemed to be delayed discharge within
existing services and intensive specialist support team to work with the most
vulnerable group that will be accessing Horizons service. As this service is a
whole systems approach, people who would benefit from the additional
support provided, to ensure a successful transition to the community, will be
identified from a variety of services such as inpatient, rehabilitation, and
residential placements. This crucially fits with the vision set out in Kent’s
strategy for better active lives where empowerment of individuals to live
independently and actively within their communities is seen as central to any
service development.

12 -
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 58



3. Strategic Context

3.1.There have been a number of drivers both at a national and local level within
health, adult services, supporting people and housing that all support the
development of services such as Horizons. It is as a result fairly wide and
complex. This section aims to outline the key drivers and legislative

framework that relate to the Horizon service.

3.2.National Priorities: The National Service Framework for Mental Health
(NSFMH) published in 1999 set out a vision for improving mental health
services, at the heart of this was the provision of mental health services
24hours a day, 7 days a week, reduction of suicide and improvement of
outcomes enabling a better quality of life for service users, their families and
the wider community. The NHS Plan set out a programme to promote the
improvement of health and reduction of inequalities that are currently
present. For mental health modernisation of services is critical. The
emphasis placed on the development on services which provide 24 hour
access to support with those with the most complex needs, and to ensure that
these services are more responsive. It also promoted the joint working of
agencies to provide a needs led service addressing inequalities, preventing
unnecessary admissions and facilitating timely discharge. The Mental Health
policy Implementation plan (DOH, 2000) also states that other services are
critical to the mental health system such as a good range of residential
services including specialist recovery based services. It also promotes a whole
system approach including a full range of agencies and services that support
the provision of high quality mental health services. The white paper Our
Health Our Say (DOH, 2006) also sets out a new path for the health and
social care system where a radical shift in the way services are delivered is
described ensuring that they are more personalised and are more geared to

promoting healthy lifestyles and independence rather than managing crisis’s.

- 13-
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 59



3.3.Local Priorities: Much of the redesign work that has been undertaken within
KMPT is based on National Priorities some of which have been outlined above.
Again, in line with such guidance, the organisation has used flexibilities
granted to adapt these to local need whilst retaining the overall drive for
modernisation and improved quality of care. Flexibilities set out in section 31
of the Health Act 1999 have been used to enable effective working
partnerships to be established with Social Care. Visions and direction of
service development for this vulnerable group is shared with a commitment to
promote recovery, social inclusion and reduce the avoidable use of hospital
beds. It is acknowledge that this can only be achieved through partnership
working with other agencies. The Vision for Kent is Kent’s community
strategy (a cross service vision over 20 years) higfﬂights improving health,
care and wellbeing as being one of its key themes with its overriding vision
emphasising the importance of community facilities in promotion healthy
living and independence. The long term aims of this strategy are to ensure
people receive the support they need to maintain their safety and
independence within their local community. The Kent Local Area Agreement
between KCC their partners and the Government Office of the South East
acknowledges the importance of developing modern social and health care
services that promote independent living. It has specific outcomes for
improving the health of Kent’s residents and reducing health inequa]itieé and
promoting independent living. This proposal supports the following targets
from Kent’s Public Service Agreement 2 with Central Government, To help
Kent’s most vulnerable adults, aged 16-64, to live independently and to reduce
avoidable use of hospital beds’. Active Lives, 2007-2016- The ten year vision
for Kent Adult Social Services sets out the local strategic foundation which
supports the development of this service. It sets out the direction for service
development including: ‘Empowering aﬁd supporting people in managing their
own lives so they remain as independent and as active as possible. Seeking to
expand the variety of places from which people and carers can access services,
and providing a single point of contact. Ensuring people and carers access the
right services in the right ways’. Towards 2010 also sets out challenging
targets to make Kent a better place for all. These include: ‘Increase the
number of people supported to live independently in their own homes.
- 14 -

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 60



Strengthen the support provided to people caring for relatives and friends.
Work towards reducing the number of people benefit dependant through our
Kent Supporting Independence Programme’.

3.4.Supporting People vision is working in partnership with others to provide high
quality, cost effective and flexible housing related support services for the
vulnerable people of Kent. These services promote independent living;
facilitate social inclusion and maintain safety and security (Thanet District
Council Housing Strategy 2006-2010, page 12). Housing related support also
contributes to meeting of national targets and objectives set out in the
NSFMH and Suicide Prevention Strategy and those set within Kent’s Toward
2010. In particular through improving mental health treatment for homeless
people; preventing homelessness through appropriate, targeted health
support; reducing emergency hospital admissions; provide more preventative
services and ensuring stable homes for more vulnerable people; and
improving quality of life, providing greater stability to deal with other issues
and decreasing social exclusion. Supporting People also contributes to
meeting provisions of the Disability Act 1995 and Disability Equality Duty as
people with mental health problems need to be able to access health services
and treatments on equal terms with other citizens. Other key documents and
how this translates to supporting people are found in their Draft Report
Updated Needs Analysis; Kent Supporting People Team; November 2007,
pages 109 - 111.

3.5.The Mental Health Move — on Accommodation strategy was developed in
partnership with Health, Social Services, East Kent Area local housing
authorities, voluntary groups and users. This strategy identifies; ‘the need for
extra care accommodation to address the delayed discharge from hospital. In
2004 the East Kent NHS Partnership Trust (now KMPT)‘ completed a review of
local mental health in patient services. The review concluded that more
community based housing support was needed. Thanet District council is
working in partnership with mental health review and redesign on inpatient

services team via the JPPB (joint policy and planning board) to provide units of

-15 -
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 61



supported housing in Thanet. This will be developed as part of the Kent PFI
bid....Thanet also supports the provision of an extra care move on facility in the
Canterbury area to serve patients from the wider East Kent Triangle area. A
Snapshot of need at March 2005 indicates 25 inpatients with no discharge
address.’ (Thanet District Council Housing Strategy 2006-2010, page 11).

3.6.As mentioned in the Thanet District Council housing strategy, the East Kent
Joint Policy Planning Board for Housing (EK JPPB) now the JPPB (housing)
supports and promotes interagency working, linking priorities with housing
authorities and those of partner health and social care agencies and supports

such developments.

3.7.0verall legislation, national and local direction empowers agencies such as
KCC, KMPT, and housing to assess the need of individuals for extra care and
supported housing. This is achieved via a joint assessment process that
informs allocations panel. Potential tenants that have been assessed as
requiring such support will be placed on a waiting list for these facilities. It is
clear that national and local priorities support the development of this

service.

4. Service Implementation

4.1.As outlined in section 1 the Horizons service will be delivered at three levels.
Housing Management support, housing related support, and specialist health
and social care service. Horizons has been developed as a result of a redesign
process of mental health provision in the Eastern and Coastal Directorate
KMPT which highlighted a number of people who no longer required acute
hospital intervention but that were unable to successfully live independently
in the community. These people were however too able for residential care.
As a result a key workstream of the redesign project was the development of
intensive supported housing opportunities for people with severe and
enduring mental health problems by winter 2008. The key feature of this

- 16 -
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 62



service is that it is accommodation based long term scheme that provides,
housing support, housing related support and specialist mental health and

social care support for people whose needs until now have remained unmet.

4.2.The Housing workstream has been sponsored by the JPPB and the Mental
Health Joint Commissioning Board.- Capital funding has been secured.from
the Housing Corporation for the development of the new supported housing
units in other districts. In the Case of Thanet 7 units plus 1 shared facility
are to be developed. The registered landlord is Housing 21. These units will
have assured tenancy as it has been developed via a PFI (Private Finance
Initiative) scheme. The units are due open on 17 November 2008 and are
situated in George Culmer Court. The workstream also had to consider
identification of funding for both housing relafed support and specialist
health and social care services, and development of a service specification for
community based services that will support clients living within the new |

units.

4.3.Housing (Management) support will be provided via the RSL, in this case
Housing 21. The costs involved with this will be obtained via Housing Benefit
eligible rent payments and therefore do not pose costs to the local health and

social care economy.

4.4.Housing Related Support: Since April 2003 the Supporting People
programme has been responsible for commissioning all housing related
support services from specialist housing support providers. KCC is the chief
administering authority for the programme and all proposals for new
supported housing that have housing related support revenue implications
are required to be supported by the Supporting People Commissioning Body.
It has been identified that Horizons will need 12.5 hours per week per unit of
housing related support. The current cost of this support is £19.07 per hour.
It is envisage that support will be required for 52 weeks. It is proposed that
the housing related support is tendered through the supporting people

process.

-17 -
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 63



4.5.Specialist Health and Social Care service: Staff employed by KMPT will
provide the specialist health and social care service for Horizons.. Staff within
the Horizon project will have protected case work in line with the units and
not be diluted by generic team responsibilities. It is also acknowledged that
cover for annual leave and sickness, will be provided by the wider mental
health team in that locality. It is proposed that the Team within the Horizons
project will consist of 2 qualified mental health professionals (1WTE band 7,
1WTE band 5) and support staff (2 WTE band 3) per locality. Care co-
ordination will sit with the teams providing intensive health and social care
support to Horizons. The costs of developing this service will be met by the

redesign of the mental health in-patient services.

4.6.1t has been key and will remain so, that involvement and partnership working
is developed and is integral to the success and delivery of Horizons. Regular
multi agency meetings occur where progress is discussed and issues can be

raised and resolved.

4.7.Six months prior to the opening of the units a panel will be convened in

which to consider referrals to Horizons.

5. Anticipated Outcomes

5.1.Horizons is a unique service which seeks to provide intensive supported
accommodation to enable this particular vulnerable group of people the

opportunity to reconnect with their community.

5.2.The additional support, from housing related support to the specialist health
and social care services, will enable the complex needs of these individuals to
be met. The support provided will enable individuals to build on their skills of
daily living both personal and domestic; their confidence in their abilities
should also show a marked improvement; individuals who may have
previously had repeated admissions, periods of homelessness etc will gain
stability and subsequently a sense of community and belonging.

- 18 -
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 64



5.3.Horizons key feature will be the empowerment of those accessing its service.
The building of skills and most importantly the reconnection with the wider
community. The support provided will tackle exclusion previously

experienced by this group of people.

5.4.This service provides a greater level of support than traditionally provided
within supported living schemes. The support provided is therefore on a
longer term basis. People who access this service are not expected to move on
quickly however it is anticipated that steady progress is made re developing
skills required to live independently, maintain tenancies and skills required to

become an active member of the local community.

5.5.Reduction in delayed discharges are also anticipated as those who can move
onto independent/supported living in the community will be able to do so,
and those with greater needs requiring further support, being able to access

relevant services, such as rehabilitation or residential care.

5.6.Horizons is about partnership. Partnerships between service providers and
the people accessing them, but also across agencies; from health to social
care to housing to the wider community. It is this whole system approach
that will work together to gain inclusion for this vulnerable group of people

and aid them in their journey to recovery.

6. Timescales

6.1. Horizons first set of units are set to be provided in the Thanet locality. They
are due to be opened on 17 November 2008. Prior to this a number of actions
need to occur. This section outlines key tasks and proposed completion

dates.

-19-
CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 65



6.2.The project team is responsible for the setting and ongoing monitoring of
timescales. The project team consists of representatives from KMPT - senior
management and operational staff a financial representative attends upon

request; KCC; and Housing.
6.3.The project group meets monthly.

6.4.Bid for funding re housing related support to be written and presented by

December 2007, supported by a commissioning body representative.
6.5.Operational policy to be in final draft by March 2008.
6.6.0n call specialist mental health support system to be agreed upon to cover
the hours between 2000 and 00830 by March 2008 and incorporated into the

operational policy.

6.7.Panel to be established to consider referrals into the Horizons service April

2008 will meet monthly as part of the PFI contract.
6.8.Mental Health Awareness training to be provided for Housing 21 management
staff. Other training needs for both the housing related support staff and

specialist team to be identified and commissioned as appropriate.

6.9.Seven units plus single shared facility due to open on 17 November 2008.

7. Financial Information

7.1.Horizons support is divided into three sections. Housing related which will be
funded via housing benefit and provided by the RSL (In Thanet Housing
Twenty One); Housing related support; and specialist health and social care

service. This section will focus on the proposed costs for both the housing

-920 -

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 66



related support and the specialist health and social care service related to

this service.

7.2.Housing Related Support: The current cost of providing housing related

support is £19.07 per hour. Horizons will require 12.5 hours per unit per
This makes the weekly cost per unit £238.38.
units/people would equate to £1668.63 per week. A year support for 7 units
would therefore cost £86,768.50 or £12395.76 per year per unit. As

illustrated in the table below

week. Support for 7

Housing Support Support Total support | Total support

Related costs per | costs per costs per costs per

Support cost | unit per week | unit per year | week (based | year (based

per hour (12.5hrs) on 7 units) on 7 units)

£19.07 £238.38 £12395.76 £1668.63 £86768.50
-21 -

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 67



Annex 1: East Kent Adult Mental Health Housing Needs Assessment 2005

CANTERBURY AND COASTAL AREAS

Acute Inpatient Census

*(patients whose home’ locality is Canterbury Coastal and are identified as having no

discharge address)

Gender | Age | Diagnosis Risk Accommodation | Delayed
Required Transfer
Female | 65 Schizophren | Self Supported Y
ia Neglect/Exploitati | Housing
on
Female | 55 Schizophren | Self Rehab —possible | N
ia Neglect/Exploitati | future need
on Supported
Harm to Others Housing
Male 36 PTSD ( Supported Y
, refugee) Housing
Male 19 Schizophren | Suicide/Self Supported N
ia Harm Housing
Male 28 Schizophren | Harm to Others Rehab — N
ia possible future
need supported
housing
Male 22 Schizophren | Suicide/Self Supported N
ia Harm Housing
Male 33 Other Risk Harm to Supported N
Psychosis Others Housing
(prison —DVH)
Male 67 Schizophren | Risk Harm to Supported Y
ia Others Housing
(37/41)
East Kent Continuing Care and Residential Care Placements Panel
Gender | Age | Diagnosis Risk Accommodatio | Delayed
n Required Transfer
Male 40 Schizophren | Self neglect Supported N
ia Housing
Rehabilitation Inpatient Census
Gender | Age | Diagnosis Risk Accommodatio | Delayed
n Required ~ Transfer
Male 32 Schizophre | Low Supported Y
nia Housing
Male 24 Schizophre | Self neglect Supported N
nia : Housing
Male 20 Schizophre | Medium Supported N
nia Housing

-9 -

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 68




Acute Inpatient Census

*(patients whose home’ locality is Thanet and are identified as having no discharge

Male 42 Schizophre | Not identified Supported N
nia Housing

Male 31 | Schizophre | Not identified Supported N
nia Housing

| Female | 24 Schizophre | Not identified Supported N

nia Housing

Male 28 Schizophre | Self and others Supported N
nia Housing

Male 49 Schizophre | Low Supported N
nia Housing

Female |51 Schizophre | 37/41 Supported N
nia . Housing

Male 30 Schizophre | Low/medium Supported N
nia Housing

Male 63 Not Self neglect Supported N
identified housing

Male 55 Schizophre | Low Supported N
nia housing

Male 37 Schizophre | Medium/High Supported Y
nia Housing

Single Agency Assessment
Supported Independent Floating Support
Housing Living Scheme
June 2003 - December | 7 9 4
2004
THANET

address)
Gender | Age | Diagnosis Risk Accommodation Delayed
Required Transfer
Female |49 Other Self Residential Care ?
psychosis neglect/exploit | or possibly Thanet
ation Scheme?
Female |43 Depression Suicide/self Residential Care Y
harm or possibly Thanet
Scheme
Male 18 PTSD Suicide/Self Supported N
Harm Housing
Male 29 Other Self Supported N
psychosis harm/suicide Housing
(admitted Harm to others

-23-

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 69




from prison)
Male 45 Schizophreni | Harm to others | Supported N
a Housing
Male 29 Other Suicide/self Supported N
psychosis harm Housing
Male 31 Schizophreni | Suicde/self Supported N
a harm Housing
Female | 35 Other Self neglect Supported N
psychosis /exploitation Housing
Harm to others
Female | 46 Personality Suicide/self Supported N
Disorder harm Housing
Female | 38 Other Suicide/self Supported N
psychosis harm Housing
Male 42 Depression Suicide/self Supported N
harm Housing
Male 25 Other Risk harm to Future supported | N
psychosis others ( prison | housing need?
—>
DVH)
Male 36 Schizophreni | Risk harm to Future supported | N
a others housing need
S.37/41

East Kent Continuing Care and Residential Care Placements Panel

Gender | Age | Diagnosis Risk Accommodation | Delayed
Required Transfer
Female |51 LD and Exploitation Supported N
Schizophrenia | and self Housing
neglect
Male 37 Schizophrenia Supported N
Housing
Male 38 Schizophrenia | Suicide/self Supported N
harm Housing
Female | 62 Depression Self harm Supported N
Housing
Rehabilitation Inpatient Census
Gender | Age | Diagnosis Risk Accommodation | Delayed
Required Transfer
Male 39 Schizo- 37/41 Supported N
affective Housing
disorder
Male 25 Schizophren | Exploitation Supported N
ia Housing
Male 34 Schizophren | Low Supported Y
ia Housing
Male 43 Schizophren | 37/41 Supported N
ia Housing
-24 -

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 70




Male 33 Schizophren | Low Supported N
ia Housing
Male 42 Schizophren | Low/medium Supported Y
ia Housing
Male 45 Schizophren | Low/medium Supported Y
ia Housing
Male 56 Schizophren | Low/medium Supported Y
ia Housing
Single Agency Assessment
Supported Independent | Floating
Housing Living Support
Scheme
June 2003 - December | O 0 30
2004
DOVER DISTRICT

Acute Inpatient Census
*(patients whose ‘home’ locality is Dover/Deal and are identified as having no

discharge address)
Gende | Ag | Diagnosis Risk Accommodatio | Delaye
T e n Required d
Transfe
r
Male 55 | Other Self Supported Y
psychsosis neglect/exploita | Housing
tion
Femal | 40 | Schizophrenia | Self Rehab — N
e neglect/exploita | Supported
_ tion housing?
Femal | 50 | Depression Suicide /self Supported Y
e harm Housing
Rehabilitation Inpatient Census
Gende | Ag | Diagnosis Risk Accommodatio | Delaye
r e n Required d
Transfe
r
Male 50 | Schizophrenia | Self and others | Supported N
Housing
Male 48 | Schizophrenia | Low Supported N
Housing
Male 37 | Schizophrenia | Self and others Supported N
‘ Housing
Male 48 | Schizophrenia | Self neglect Supported N
' Housing

-25-

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 71




Male |44 | Schizophrenia | 37/41 Supported N
Housing

Male |27 | Schizophrenia | Self Harm Supported N
Housing

Femal | 40 | Schizophrenia | Self Supported N

e Harm /Neglect Housing

Male 38 | Schizophrenia | Self neglect Supported N
Housing

Male 55 | Schizophrenia | Self neglect Supported N
Housing

Male 48 | Schizophrenia | self and others Supported N
Housing

Single Agency Assessment

Supported Independent Floating
- Housing Living Scheme | Support
June 2003 —- December | O 1 1

2004

ASHFORD

Acute Inpatient Census

*(patients whose ‘home’ locality is Ashford and are identified as having no discharge

address)
Gender | Age | Diagnosis Risk Accommodation Delaye
Required d
Transfe
r
Female | 59 Schizophrenia | Self Residential or N
neglect/ex | Supported Housing
ploitation | with appropriate
support?
Male 37 Schizophrenia Supported Housing | N
Male 37 Schizophrenia | Self Supported Housing | N
neglect
Male 30 Schizophrenia | Self Supported Housing | N
neglect
and
exploitatio
n
East Kent Continuing Care and Residential Care Placements Panel
Gender | Age | Diagnosis Risk Accommodation | Delayed
Required Transfer
Male 46 Psychosis Medium Supported N
(37/41) Housing
-26 -

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

Page 72




Rehabilitation Inpatient Census

Accommodatio

Gender | Age | Diagnosis Risk Delaye
n Required d
Transfe
r
Male 36 Schizophrenia | Not identified | Supported N
Housing
Male 45 Bipolar 37/41 Supported N
disorder Housing
Male 47 | Schizophrenia | Not identified | Supported N
Housing
Female |41 Schizophrenia | Not identified | Supported N
Housing
Female |34 Schizophrenia | Exploitation Supported N
' Self harm Housing
Male 35 Schizophrenia | Medium Supported Y
Housing
Single Agency Assessment
Supported Independent Floating
Housing Living Scheme Support
June 2003 - 0 1 2
December 2004
Service Shortfalls (Completed by CMHT)
Gender Age Diagnosis | Risk Accommodatio | Delaye
n Required d
Transfe
r -
Female 20 Mood Self Supported N
disorder Harm Housing
Female 19 Mood Self Supported N
disorder neglect Housing
Female 20 Mood Self Supported N
disorder Harm Housing

CB 20.03.08 Mental Health Growth Bid

-27 -

Page 73




Item 11
By:  Caroline Highwood, Director — Resources, Kent Adult Social Services

To: Supporting People Commissioning Body — March 2008

Subject: Better Homes Active Lives Housing PFl
Classification: Unrestricted
Summary: To apply to the Commissioning Body for one off funding from

the Supporting People Grant to aid the provision of Extra Care
and Supported Housing under the Better Homes Active Lives
Housing PFI

For Decision

1.0 Introduction:

The County and ten of the twelve District Councils in Kent finalised the procurement
process of a PFl in October 2007 and have now moved into a new phase with
Housing 21 to build 340 units of accommodation.

The next phase will deliver 275 units for older peopble in the form of Extra Care
- Sheltered Housing, 58 units for people with learning disabilities and seven units for
people with mental health problems.

The aim and purpose of the accommodation is to provide care and support to the
tenants and to provide a genuine alternative to residential care and be instrumental
to moving people out of institutionalised environments. :

2.0 Strategic Fit:

The development of this accommodation meets the aims of a number of Kent County
Council strategies and targets including Towards 2010, Active Lives, the Local Area
Agreement, assists with PSA2 targets and supports the delivery of local district
Council Housing strategies.

The Kent Supporting People Five Year Strategy states:

“We will realise our vision through.. .. Promoting integration and partnership working
at all levels in order to increase overall the strategically planned supply of housing-
related support units in the county and promote new service developments for the
prioritised client groups, choice and sustainable housing solutions for vuinerable
people”

Attached at Appendix One is an extract from the Kent Supporting People Five Year
Strategy relating to the client groups.

The BHAL project is also important to central government delivering key priorities oif
the Treasury and the Communities and local Government Department. The public

Page 74



private partnership between 11 local authorities is unique has also been promoted by
them as a best practice example of joint working.

3.0 Funding Request:

The request for funding is for a one off, non-recurring amount of £ £355k that are
costs associated with the Better Homes Active Lives Housing PFI (BHAL) for the
provision of supported accommodation.

These schemes have been registered as growth schemes with the SP Team since
2004 when it was identified that the PFI would be progressed. It should be noted that
no further funding will be requested for housing related support costs or for the on-
call alarm in the Extra Care schemes. The work in developing the BHAL PFI
programme has resulted in a model of service provision which is affordable, without
the need to call on Supporting People funding.

4.0 Financial Impact:

If this request for one-off funding is agreed, the accumulated savings figure (shown in
the budget report elsewhere on this agenda) would be reduced by £355k.

50 Recommendations: \'bu

The Commissioning Body is asked to approve the expenditure of £355k in-legakeests”
request for funding.

Christy Holden (ﬁb‘ﬁ:‘“ "; -d ’

PFI Contract Manager

Better Homes Active Lives -

01622 694272 3 \"\/ﬂ"* 9 WU*PDD / 6 :

Page 75



Appendix One

Extract from the Kent Supporting People Five Year Strategy 2005-2010

Older People

Extra Care sheltered housing, Community Alarms and Home Improvement Agencies
meet our strategic priorities and all currently commissioned services are strategically
relevant.”

Priorities for Service Change/ Development

« There is a need for more extra care sheltered accommodation across the areas
where the highest proportions of older people live. To fund this provision, capital and
revenue funding will be required.

How will we get there?

* A new extra care sheltered scheme funded under ADP in Thanet. Time scale: 2007.
* A new extra care sheltered scheme funded by Social Services in Faversham Time
scale: Summer 2006

* Proposed development, under PFI, for supported accommodation schemes in the
following areas: Ashford (40 units), Dover (40 units), Dartford (40 units), Maidstone
(40 units), Shepway (40 units), Thanet (40 units), Tunbridge Wells (40 units) and
Sevenoaks (40 units). The revenue funding implication for these units equates to an
estimated £35 per unit, per week. Time scale: 2007

* We will identify sheltered accommodation with the potential to provide extra care
services. Time scale: 2007/08

* We will carry out a review of all services for Older People with Support Needs in the
county which will enable us to consider and plan for:

* Potential for remodelling warden serviced accommodation with provision of Floatmg
Support to only those older people with support needs who require such support.
This would enable the delivery of a flexible model of support across tenures which
has a greater reach than previously and reflect need, eligibility and take into account
the scarcity of resources.

* Development of a set of minimum standards for all sheltered accommodation and
establish a five year timeframe during which all services will be expected to reach
that minimum standard. Time scale: Autumn 2005

Learning Disability

* Proposed development, under PFI, for supported accommodation schemes in the
following areas: Ashford (6 units), Canterbury (6 units), Dover (6 units), Dartford (8
units), Maidstone (8 units), Shepway (8 units), Swale (6 units), Thanet (6 units), and
Tonbridge & Malling (6 units). The revenue funding implication for these units
equates to an estimated £982,800 per annum. Time scale: 2007/2008.

Page 76



Item No: 12
REPORT
By: Caroline Highwood — Director of Resources, Adult Social
Services
To: | Supporting People in Kent Commissioning Body
20 March 2008
Subject: Self Directed Support
Classification: Unrestricted
For Information
Summary: This report is concerned with the introduction of self-

directed support and its possible implications for the
Supporting People Programme. It makes reference to
direct payments and personal budgets and the possible
impact on existing contractual models.

1.0 Introduction

In 2005 the govemmeht’s policy “Improving the Life Chances of Disabled
People” set out a new vision for the services that support disabled people. It
proposed that by 2012 all disabled people would control their own Individual
Budget.

A Self-Directed Support steering group has been set up within Kent Adult
Social Services. The purpose of this group is to oversee the development and
advise on the implementation of Self-Directed Support in Kent Adult Social
Services (KASS). The group will report through the Active Lives for Adults
(ALfA) Programme to the Strategic Management Team.

2.0 Principles of Self-Directed Support

Self-Directed Support places the service user at the heart of planning,
choosing and controlling the support that they need. It may be expressed as a -
personal budget, which would still be managed by KASS, although the service
user will have defined the service. Where the service user wishes to manage
their own services the personal budget would become a direct payment, (KASS

-1-
CB 20.03.08 Self Directed Support

Page 77



already supports around 1400 people on direct payments) Principles that
define Self-Directed Support are:

Right to independent living — if someone has an impairment which
means they need help to fulfil their potential as a citizen, then they
should get the help they need

Right to a personalised budget — if someone needs ongomg paid help
they should be able to decide how that money is spent

Right to self-determination - if assistance is needed to make decisions,
the decisions should be made as close to the person as possible,
reflecting their interests and preferences

Right to accessibility ~ administration and rules must be clear, as
simple as possible and transparent.in order to maximise the ability of
the individual to take control of their own support

Right to flexible funding - people should be free to spend their
personalised budget in the way that suits them to achieve identified
outcomes without unnecessary restrictions

Accountability principle — both the service user and the funder have a
responsibility to explain decisions, share information and account for
the ways that funding has been used

Capacity principle — service users; their families and communities
should not be assumed to be incapable of managing their own support

Self-Directed Support means that:

people will be in control of their support without necessarily having to
take on the financial and employment responsibilities '

the allocation of money is at the start of the assessment process so that
people can plan their own lives

people will have an opportunity to either manage the money and
support themselves or of having the money and support managed for
them

people will have as much or as little help in directing their own support
as they need

Individual budgets will be a further development of these principles by
combining other funding streams within KASS such as Independent Living
Fund and Supporting People.

3.0 The process

There will still be an assessment process to see whether people are eligible for
community care services under the Fair Access to Care rules. The process will
continue to include provision of information for people not eligible for support

-2 -

CB 20.03.08 Self Directed Support

Page 78



from Kent Adult Social Services (KASS). There will, however be some
differences: :

o Information. There will be quality information, advice and guidance
that are easily accessible and available. People will be helped to make
their own self-assessment and find their own solutions

o Access to social care. For those eligible there will be faster and easier
access to social care with a self-assessment process with appropriate
level of assistance where required. Fast track provision of equipment
and one off payments to purchase equipment or support will be
developed.

o Resource Allocation System (RAS). People will self-assess with help if
needed and assessment will be proportionate to need. The assessment
allows a notional budget to be allocated at the start of the process (RAS).
Knowing what money is available in a personal budget will allow people
to plan their lives in a better way.

° Support Plan. A support plan will be drawn up by the person with an
appropriate level of assistance. This will be focused on goals and
outcomes. All support plans have to be agreed against the level of risk

and cost

o Managing the momney. The person’s budget will be managed in a
number of ways - by the person themselves, a representative,
independent living trust, broker, provider organisation or, as now, by
KASS

° Co-ordinating support. People can choose to do this themselves or ask

any of the organisations in above bullet point for assistance

The Department of Health has instigated a set of 13 Individual Budget Pilots to
look at the way of meeting the support needs of people more effectively by
allocating resources transparently, giving a cash or notional sum to use on
their care or support package. These pilots bring together a variety of funding
streams including the Supporting People programme. The publication of the
evaluation from the pilot schemes is scheduled for March 2008.

4.0 General Implications for Supporting People Programme

Once individual budgets are developed, self-directed support and direct
payments are likely to have implications for the programme and the delivery of
services under current arrangements.

It would be entirely possible for an individual to elect to have their support

given to them by a neighbour, relative, friend or a professional support
provider. This has obvious implications for existing providers and contracts.

CB 20.03.08 Self Directed Support

Page 79



For floating support services, a certain amount of choice exists to the service
user in that there may be more than one provider in any given area. This
choice currently does not extend to the service user choosing their own
support provider and this goes against the principle of self-directed support.

For accommodation-based services, choice is more restricted as service
provision is linked to the accommodation and is provided by a landlord or a
service provider under contract. This support provision is often a condition of
tenancy. '

All of these factors will have real implications for the long-term operation of |
Supporting People. The evaluation of the national pilots will clearly be
extremely helpful in developing this view and considering how individual
budgets may be implemented in Kent.

5.0 Conclusion

Self-Directed Support is a key principle that is supported by central
government and KASS and, if individual budgets are to be implemented they
will have strategic and operational implications for the Supporting People
Programme. A further report will be presented to a future meeting once the
national evaluation of the pilot sites has been published.

6.0 Recommendations

The Commissioning Body is asked to note the contents of this report

Kevin Prior

Procurement & Commissioning Manager
01622 696198

Background Information http:/ /www.lga.gov.uk/lga/aio/ 19195

CB 20.03.08 Self Directed Support

Page 80



Supporting People in Kent — Glossary of Terms

Accreditation

This is a regular assessment of a support provider to check if they are able to

provide a good quality Supporting People service

"‘Local Authonty

Audit Commission

“An independent body responsible for ensuring that public money is use

responsibly, economically and effectively

“Benchmarking

Best Value

A duty‘oh' Iocal authéfiﬁes to assess .ayndv reVIeW fhé sewlcéé théy prowdé for

local people and improve them by the best means available. This must be
done in consultation with the people who use the services and the wider local
community

Block Contract

The purcyhasé:of support éémces for more than one person, usually before the
service is delivered

Block Subsidy Contract

A contract for a support service which is usually long-term or permanent e.g.
sheltered housing. Grant payments to the provider will vary, depending on how
many people receiving the support service qualify for the subsidy at any given
time. Providers tell the SP team on a monthly basis who has moved in and out
of their service, and the subsidy payment is adjusted accordingly. Some
service users may be charged for this service.

Capacity

deliverable at an

modation with.su

Client Record Form

Forms used to monitor all new clients who usé Supportihg Peopfe sel;vi-ciés.‘

The statistics are then collated by The Joint Centre for Scottish Housing
Research (JCSHR) and data is used to help SP Teams identify needs. Details
available at www.spclientrecord.org.uk These are completed by providers each
time they take on a new client. Details such as previous type of
accommodation, client group and ethnicity are recorded so Supporting People .
teams can monitor who is using the services. No personally identifying details
are recorded

Commissioning Body -

The group is made-up-of represeritatives:from all of the partners:
Supporting People, such:-as Housirg, Social Sérvices, Health: Pe! ):sand
Probation. Its role is to strategxcally direct and scrutmlse the progra nme:

Kent Glossary Version 1 Jan 08

‘Page 81



Contract monitoring

Contract monitoring is the regular process undertaken by Admlnlstenng
Authorities to ensure that providers comply with the requirements of the
contract and are performing effectively. Contract monitoring is an extremely
important process as it provides regular information to update authorities’
understanding of the quality and effectiveness of Supporting People services
and the Value for Money the programme achieves. In Kent, much of the
contract monitoring is conducted by local Monitoring and Review (M & R)
Officers.

Cross Authority Grou‘p '

Neighbouring AA's working together to plan fand develop policies anu services

(CAG) across the group
Cross Authority A services designated by the CLG to provide support for service users
Provision originating from another Administering Authority (AA)

Floating Support

This kind of support is "attached" to the person, not the property and can follow
a service user if they move to another address. It only lasts for as long as the
client needs it and the “floats” away to the next person in need. The service
user does not need to live at a certain address to receive the support.

Grant Condition

Produced by CLG, these conditions set out how the money paid to the AA is to
be spent and how the programme is to be managed.

Housing Benefit (HB)

A means teeted beneﬁt paid to council or private tenants who need help paying '
their rent

Managing Agent

V A managmg agent is an organlsatlon provndlng housmg management servrces |

(such as collecting rent) on behalf of another body, often a Registered Social
Landlord (RSL). The managing agent may also provide the support services.

:National Directory of - . -

Services

-accessed via the Commum

A directory of all Supporting People funded services in-England which is
s websrte or at www. spdtrectorv org: uk

NHF - National Housing
Federation

Also known as the Natfed the NHF provtdes advice and support for not-for-
profit- housing providers. Their web site address is www.housing.org.uk

Kent Glossary Version 1 Jan 08

-Page 82



(PI's)

Performance Indicators

Performance statistics submitted to the Supporting People teams by Providers.
They are used as part of contracts and monitoring

Key Performance Indicator 1 (KPI1) measures the percentage of people who
have maintained independence (KP12)

Key Performance Indicator 2 the number of service users who have moved on
in a planned way from temporary hvmg arrangements

Quality Assessment
Framework (QAF)

Quality assessment framework. Providers self asses their service against
national objectives (such as consulting service users on how they want the
service to be run). The Supporting People team use the results as part of the
benchmarking process with the aim of continually improving the quality of
services in Kent.

Registered Social
Landlord (RSL)

A non profit making voluntary group, generally a housing association, formed
to provide affordable housing

Scheme Manager

A scheme manager is the support worker who manages a housing related
support service. The term is also used to describe the support worker within a
sheltered scheme (may have been termed a ‘warden’ previously).

Service Users

The term “service users” is used to refer to people who use supporting people
services and also fo carers and advocates where applicable. It is important
that, in consulting and involving service users, providers also seek the views of
carers and advocates where service users may not be able to participate fully.

Sheltered Housing

Housiog 'spéctifically for older and or disabled people. Includes a block or group
of houses with resident or visiting warden and individual house, bungalow and
flats which receive support from a mobile warden or pendant (emergency)
alarm

| programme

The Supporting People Knowledge website (published by CLG)- this is

SPkweb accessible to all by logging onto www.spkweb.org.uk The Kweb contains all
the guidance and related documents on the Supporting People programme
The agreement in place for the provision of housing related support held

Steady State Contract between the Supporting People Team and individual service providers

: -.;SfupporftediHolisinga. -

‘I These are services that provide bt
| enable: people to live indep
.| include women'’s refuges, sheltel

th accommodation and support

ing-and. homeless hostels

Stakeholders

People or organisations that form pért of the SP programme. Stakehol‘ders
share or contribute to the aim of the SP Programme

-Bage 83

Kent Glossary Version 1 Jan 08




Supporting People
Distribution Formula

A formula developed by the DCLG to decide how much Supporting People
grant each Administering Authority will be allocated

Supporting People

The programme came into effect 6n the 1st Apri (o] déiivef Houéing-
related support services to vulnerable people through a single funding stream,
administered by local authorities according to the needs of people in their area

Support Provider

The orgaﬁ'iéation provi md ﬁousmé felatedéi]pport services paid for by
Supporting People. Organisation types include Registered Social Landlords,
voluntary sector organisations, local authorities, charities and the private
sector

Validation Visit

A reality check by a SP Local Monitoring and Review Officer to a support
service to establish whether the Provider is achieving the standards they are
contracted to deliver. Supporting People Team members will also consult with
Service Users and staff and stakeholders to find out their views of the service.
The aim of these visits is to work with providers to improve the quality of the
services in Kent, and for the findings feed into strategic decision making

Links

The following links may provide further insight into the programme.

www.communities.gov.uk

www.spkweb.org.uk

www.spdirectory.org.uk/DirectoryServices

www.sitra.org.uk

www.housing.org.uk

www.kent.gov.uk/supportingpeople

Contact the Kent Supporting People Team supportingpeopleteam@kent.gov.uk

Please tell us if you think that any other terms or links should be included in this

glossary

Page.84

Kent Glossary Version 1 Jan 08



	Agenda
	Reports

